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CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works and Transportation meeting

2

December 5th is now in session. Good morning,

3

Members. For the record, we have --

.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.

5

CHAIR MOLINA: In attendance we have the Vice-Chair of the

6

Committee Dain Kane, Committee member Robert

7

Carroll, Committee member Riki Hokama, Committee
member Charmaine Tavares. Excused we have Committee
member Alan Arakawa and Patrick Kawano. Although

10

not a member of the Committee, we have Councilmember

11

Jo Anne Johnson in attendance. And we welcome you

12

all.
And as far as Committee staff goes, we have

13
14

our secretary Jo-Ann Sato and Legislative Analyst

15

Jan Inouye Ogata. And from the Corporation

16

Counsel's office we welcome Mr. Greg Garneau, who

17

has replaced the retired Howard Fukushima. Welcome

18

aboard:

19

Public testimony will now be accepted for the

20

items on the agenda. We have three of them. Those

21

wishing to testify should sign up at the secretary's

22

desk. Testimony shall be limited to three minutes.

23

An additional minute to conclude the testimony will

24

be granted subject to the discretion of the Chair.

25

If testimony is not completed, an additional three
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1

minutes will be given after all others have been

2

heard.
Testifiers are requested to state their name

4

for the record and to indicate who they are

5

representing. To minimize any disturbances during

6

the meeting, I ask that you please turn off all

7

pagers and cellular phones or set them to the silent

8

mode.

9

At this time the Chair will accept public

10

testimony on all items on today's agenda. First up

11

we have testifying on Item No. 32 Steve Sutrov.

12
13

. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. SUTROV: Good morning, everyone. Council Chair Molina

14

and -- Council Committee Chair, sorry, and Council.

15

I'm here to talk briefly about Public Works 32,

16

which is outdoor lighting communication on the

17

agenda today. I just want to publicly and

18

personally thank the Council for on October 3rd for

19

all their kudos on this to our Committee that did

20

this ordinance, drafted it and submitted it that day

21

to your -- to you for review. Your -- your comments

22

and praise of it were taken very well and -- and I

23

want to thank you for pursuing it strongly and

24

recommending that it go forward quickly and that the

25

Chair accepted the suggestion of us forming a
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subcommittee to review it further. And I hope that
the ordinance will not be slighted through this
process, I hope it will be improved upon and added
to and even made into a much stronger document that
will be accepted widely by everyone.
I want to just give a quick -- Back in 1994
7

when this issue first came to Public Works for -- a

8

Committee was formed to review it and -- review a

9

comprehensive outdoor lighting issue, a document,

10

and it went forward in -- to be a full,

11

comprehensive lighting document, but it did not

12

follow through all the way and it just got into

13

streetlighting and subdivisions. And the community

14

was full behind at that time to make it a

15

comprehensive lighting ordinance, but it didn't

16

happen. If it would have happened, we would be

17

experiencing a much better environment right now on

18

Maui with our lighting situation. We would have

19

saved much money, also. Right now we estimate

20

conservatively we could be saving $500,000 a year

21

retrofitting with full cut-off fixtures and low

22

pressure sodium lighting on our streetlights. So

23

we -- we hope this is adopted quickly and put into

24

progress -- in process so we can all enjoy a much

25

cleaner environment with better lighting and also
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2

for economical reasons saving lots of money in doing
so.

3

And, yeah, it's a -- it goes together with an

4

overall clutter issue for Maui. I think we ought to

5

start addressing also that is along with signage and

6

power poles and our lighting, all three of those are

7

commercial and bureaucratic pollution to Maui County
and we have to start addressing all three of those.

9

10

MS. OGATA: Three minutes.
MR. SUTROV: So I want to thank you once again for your

11

starting a subcommittee on this ordinance and

12

hopefully it will come to the Council again in

13

public hearings before too long.

14

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Sutrov.

15
16
17
18

Members, any questions for the testifier?
Hearing none, thank you very much.
Next to testify on Item No. 60 we have
Michele Chouteau to be followed by Kelly Arbor.

19

MS. CHOUTEAU: Good morning, Committee Chair Molina,

20

Committee Members, Council Members, my name is

21

Michele Chouteau with Chouteau Consulting. I am

22

here this morning in my capacity as a planning

23

consultant with Smith Development. I simply wanted

24

to state that I am available here today as well as

25

Kent Smith, the president of Smith Development, to
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1

answer any questions you might have about the

2

Maunaolu Plantation Subdivision beyond those that

3

your resource people are able to address. As you

4

know, the subdivision is a work in progress, so

5

there may be details about the subdivision that the

6

resource people may not be able to answer and just

7

wanted to make ourselves available to you if you

8

have questions when that item is discussed. Thank

9

you.

10

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Michele.
Members, any questions for Michele at this

11
12

time? Hearing none, thank you.
Next we have Kelly Arbor, to be followed by

13
14

Charles Loomis. She'll be testifying on Item No.

15

60.

16

MS. ARBOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair, for this opportunity.

17

The Maunaolu Plantation -- Sorry. Kelly Arbor is my

18

name. The Maunaolu Plantation goes back to 1995 in

19

its present configuration more or less, in this

20

similar configuration to 1995. The Planning

21

Director at that time, Brian Miskae, said that it

22

did not conform with the General Plan. I think the

23

largest question is: How does a subdivision move

24

forward that does not conform with the General Plan?

25

The General Plan is law that was confirmed within
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the case that was the Kihei case that the general --

2

the General Plan and the community plans are -- do

3

have the effect of law. So I think that's the

4

largest question.

5

There are some other questions that have to

6

do with the extensions of the subdivision. The

7

Public Works Director for good cause can give

8

extensions of the preliminary subdivision. It's not

9

clear in the law and perhaps it ought to be clear

10

what is good cause. There were also two instances

11

where -- The provision in the law that says that the

12

applicant must come forward within 15 days of

13

expiration. There were two times, one in 1997 and

14

one in 1998, when that wasn't followed. So I think

15

there are some questions about the legality of those

16

extensions.

17

The Planning Director in a letter for an

18

earlier application on this land from 1994 said that

19

he felt there should be an agricultural utilization

20

plan. I think this is only right to protect

21

agricultural land. Certainly people can farm on

22

small parcels. Two is not ideal. From my

23

discussions with small farmers, five to ten is more

24

sustainable in terms of livelihood: But for even

25

small farmers, two acres is rather small. But if
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1

people can -- you know, want to do some kind of

2

small farm operation, there should be a plan in

3

place that shows how those lands will be used for

4

that purpose.

5

There is also a large issue that I believe is
still holding up this project from final approval

7

that has to do with private water systems. And I
think the Water Department's comments are very

9

appropriate. This water system might be later found

10

to be contaminated water and what is the County's

11

liability and responsibility in that event?

12

Another question that I don't know if this

13

should be addressed through land use law or through

14

subdivision law but has to do with covenants. There

15

are many restrictive covenants on this project that

16

limit the type of agricultural use. For instance,

17

you cannot have a rooster, therefore you couldn't

18

have fertilized eggs. You can't have pigs. We know

19

according to State law that buyers in

20

agricultural --

21

MS. OGATA: Three minutes.

22

MS. ARBOR: Thank you. I'll conclude in one minute.

23

Buyers in Agricultural Districts are warned

24

that operations can be smelly, they can be noisy,

25

and this is one of the things that -- one of the
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1

reasons why people who bUY in those areas need to

2

expect that there can be some unpleasant moments,

3

but that is the nature of agriculture. And I don't

4

believe that restrictive covenants that say what

5

- type of operation you can have

I'm not sure that

6

that actually would be legal under State law. Maybe

7

the attorneys can address that, too.

8
9
10
11
12

Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Kelly.
Members, any questions for Ms. Arbor?
Hearing none, thank you.
Next to testify we have Mr. Charles Loomis to

13

be followed by Rob Parsons. Mr. Loomis will be

14

testifying on Item 60.

15

MR. LOOMIS: Good morning, Mr. Chair.

16

CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.

17

MR. LOOMIS: Council Members. I'm Charlie Loomis, vice

18

president, general counsel of A&B Properties.

19

Alexander and Baldwin owns the land at Maunaolu

20

Plantations. We're under contract to Maunaolu

21

Associates, LLC. I'm here simply today to answer

22

any questions you may have.

23
24
25

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.
Members, any questions for Mr. Loomis at this
time? Hearing none, thank you.
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2

testifying on Item 60, to be followed by Christina

3

Hemming.

4

MR. PARSONS: Good morning, aloha. Rob Parsons speaking

5

today as an individual. I think you're all aware of

6

my usual affiliations with the groups Haiku

7

Community Association, Sierra Clubi Maui Tomorrow,

8

all of which traditionally have brought forth strong

9

arguments for Smart Growth, for responsible

10

planning, and for community-based planning. I think

11

that's what's at stake here regarding the issue

12

before you, the discussion on Maunaolu Plantation.

13

Much has changed since the original

14

application for subdivision back in 1994. Since

15

that time we have addressed the cumulative impacts

16

of this kind of subdivision. There is one clause in

17

the Ag. Zoning Ordinance, you have probably read it

18

before, which, the term is, grandfathers things that

19

had preliminary subdivision applications forward.

20

Well, it -- it's Section -- it's County Code

21

19.30A.030. But this only grandfathers the number

22

of lots allowed. This doesn't guarantee final

23

approval. This doesn't mean that we don't need to

24

use the same criteria for good planning in deciding

25

whether this should receive final approval.
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There are a few things here that are

2

partitularly poignant, and one is that this clearly

3

is not being marketed as an ag. subdivision. It's

4

being marketed as an exclusive, gated, luxury

5

residential community much like Brian Miskae in his

6

letter of 1995 said this is exactly what it sounds

7

like. And this is what was addressed in the Ag.
Zoning Ordinance.

9

I was handed this morning a copy of the

10

comments from Department of Water Supply, and I

11

think they speak for themselves. It does not comply

12

with what it needs to.

13

Really, I think this needs a change in zoning

14

to some urban designation. We're looking at 39

15

lots. That's -- house and ohana would be 78 units.

16

That's 2.3 cars per family and two to four trips a

17

day. You're talking about somewhere between 400 and

18

800 automobile trips in the middle of Baldwin

19

Avenue. And they have to go somewhere because

20

there's no services. Got to go two miles to Makawao

21

or four miles to Paia, no matter what they're doing.

22

And the cumulative -- the main cumulative effects of

23

this kind of thing happening in Haiku, which I can

24

speak to over the last five and ten years is

25

traffic. And that's why we've got a backup in Paia.
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1

This would add to that.
I have another concern, and that is that this

2
3

4

was not reviewed in the community plan. There is
something on the same tax map key which is a project

5

district in Hamakuapoko. Now, this -- this acreage

6

is about a 2,600-acre parcel.

7

8
9
10

MS. OGATA: Three minutes.
MR. PARSONS: Just to be certain, I think I'd better come
back.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Rob. I'll give you another

11

minute if you want to come back later for another

12

three.

13

MR. PARSONS: I think I may need another three. If I may,

14

yeah --

15

CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.

16

MR. PARSONS: -- finish -- conclude after everyone has

17
18
19

spoken.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Rob.
Okay. Next to testify we have Christina

20

Hemming. For the moment, Christina will be our last

21

testifier for today.

22

Is there anyone else in the gallery who would

23

like to testify? Please come on up to the

24

secretary's desk.

25

Good morning, Christina.
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MS. HEMMING: Good morning, Council Members. I see a few

2

people are missing. My name is Christina Hemming

3

and I live in Kula. One -- the first thing I'm

4

going to mention is my drive down Haleakala Highway

5

to work, I always notice a lot of cars piling up by

6

Haliimaile Road trying to come out on to Haleakala

7

Highway. Now, I notice Mr. Vicens is here and when

8

Haliimaile Project came up two years ago you might

9

recall that I asked at that point that Haliimaile --

10

with the 200 homes passed in Haliimaile, that the

11

road, Haliimaile Road, would have to be enlargened

12

and the intersection at Haleakala Highway would have

13

to be improved. With this subdivision I can only

14

say that it's just another subdivision that will

15

increase the traffic on Haliimaile Road going out to

16

Haleakala for all the people driving down to work.

17

There are several reasons why you should not

18

file this communication and why you should review

19

alleged improprieties in relation to this

20

subdivision. The first one not -- being the blatant

21

advertising by the real estate agency for selling

22

reservations for a housing project that hasn't even

23

been approved by the County. This is ridiculous and

24

I feel like the County should ask Landmark Realty to

25

remove their signs on Baldwin Avenue and remove
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1

their signs from the office because this is a

2

nonexistent subdivision at this point.

3

The second thing is I am partners with a

4

farmer and the first thing this will do, this will

5

raise the land values for all agricultural property.

6

Now, in a way that may sound good, but it will mean

7

that farmers will have a harder time to buy property

8

and farm it. It will make all the ag. lots, all the

9

zoned agricultural property values soar, which will

10
11

decrease the incentive to actually farm.
I also want to ask very directly What will

12

be the tax revenue for the County for the

13

subdivision for 39 lots versus the cost to the

14

County if it's got agricultural applications? Then

15

if it has agricultural zoning, then it will pay the

16

least amount in prOperty taxes to the County. Is

17

that good for the County? How much will police,

18

fire fighters, road improvements and if the water

19

doesn't turn out to be a good private well, how much

20

money will the County have to float in bonds in

21

order to put in a private water -- a County water

22

system for the thing, for the subdivision?

23

Rob Parsons mentioned two to four,cars per

24

household unit and then you can multiply that for

25

the trips per day. I want to ask the County, are
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1

you going to require them to do their $5,000

2

volunteer per unit allocation for road improvements?

3

MS. OGATA: Three minutes.

4

MS. HEMMING: $5,000 -- I'll take one more minute. $5,000

5

for 78 hundred -- 78 units for just road

6

improvements. That's that volunteer thing Mr. Apana

7

wants, Mayor Apana wants.

8
9

The other thing I would like to ask is: Who
is going to take care of the health? Are they going

10

to have to sign a health release form for any

11

overspray from the pineapple or sugar industry?

12

I would like you to protect the agricultural

13

lands that we do have, no matter how degraded or

14

prime they are. If they want to urbanize this

15

property, let them go to the State, apply fora

16

State zoning change, come to the County, apply for a

17

community plan change and go through every single

18

step in order so that everybody knows and there's

19

community input that, okay, this is going to be

20

urbanized land. Because otherwise its going to be

21

Paia to Makawao houses all along Baldwin Avenue and

22

all the way out to Haliimaile.

23
24
25

The other thing I would like to leave you
with is if you do -MS. OGATA: Four minutes.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Christina.

2

MS. HEMMING: -- plan -- Okay. If you do not plan --

3

CHAIR MOLINA: Christina, you know, I have to cut you off

4

now. You can come back for three minutes. I've

5

got -- Committee Secretary, do we have another

6

testifier?

7

MS. OGATA: Yes, you do.

8

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Okay. We have another

9
10
11

testifier. We have Mr. Dick Mayer will be
testifying on Item No. 60.
MR. MAYER: Thank you, Mr. Molina, Council Members. My

12

name is Dick Mayer. I would like to speak strongly

13

against any kind of a land use of this kind in that

14

area that would allow urbanization to be taking

15

place between Makawao and Paia. I as Vice-Chair of

16

the Up-Country Plan worked very hard along with

17

other members of the Committee to recommend that no

18

urbanization of this kind be taking place.

19

The specific language that we have in the

20

Up-Country Plan states as follows, this is under

21

Land Use: Encourage and support the development of

22

land use performance and subdivision standards such

23

as cost of development which will encourage viable

24

farm operations. And then, specifically, discourage

25

the State subdivisions on agricultural land such as
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Kula 200 or Kula Glen. So this kind of a

2

subdivision of an agricultural lot being divided up

3

for urbanized use is something that is against the

4

Up-Country Plan.

5

Secondly, in the General Plan of the County

6

of Maui there's very similar language, and this

7

covers all of these areas in the rural areas. And

8

under Agriculture it states, and I'm just going to

9

read the relevant policy, which was part of our

10

plan, it says, discOurage establishment of

11

pseudo-agricultural subdivisions. It couldn't be

12

more explicit. There is -- this would violate the

13

General Plan to put in this kind of a development.

14

You have also been attending Smart Growth

15

conferences which speak againSt urban sprawl. The

16

Up-Country Community Plan did designate an area

17

around Haliimaile for urban use a mile away which is

18

contiguous to urban area of Haliimaile. There is no

19

shortage of parcels in the Up-Country region of Maui

20

for development. In the Up-Country region there are

21

I believe several thousand parcels that could be now

22

built on if water were available. And that --

23

apparently to Mr. Craddick seems to be that there is

24

availability of water now and he's starting to give

25

out meters or he claims he will be able to give out
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meters. So there's no shortage of land parcels

2

which can now be used for housing developments in

3

the Up-Country region.

4

What we need to do, though, is protect the

5

Up-Country ambiance, which is part of our community

6

plans. And I urge you strongly to do everything you

7

can to prevent this kind of a subdivision from
taking place. Thank you.

9
10
11
12

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Mayer.
Any questions for Mr. Mayer, Members?
Hearing none, thank you.
Okay. Committee Secretary, has anyone else

13

to be testifying? Okay. We have two testifiers who

14

would like to take an additional three minutes.

15

First I would like to call up Rob Parsons, to be

16

followed by Christina Hemming.

17

MR. PARSONS: Aloha, Rob Parsons. Thank you for the

18

opportunity to conclude my comments here on Maunaolu

19

Plantation. I began to say that this has not been

20

reviewed before today in any community forum.

21

There's a gentleman named Rick Holt who spoke a few

22

months ago at our -- our Mayor's lounge to a number

23

of you and a number of the citizens of this

24

community, also spoke at the Smart Growth

25

Conference. Rick maintains that Smart Growth
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1

responds to the needs of the community, and I

2

couldn't agree more. Well, the community has been

3

left out of the loop on this one up until this very

4

moment, and I would ask: When did the community say

5

that we need a gated, luxury community Up-Country?
I don't believe they have. And when did the

7

community ask that our Administration allow yet

8

another loophole for a developer/landowner to slip

9

through at the expense of the community at large

10
11

which will suffer the impacts of it?
There's another -- another thing that's in

12

our County Code, 18.12.080 and I will read it word

13

for word. Under E, or final plat action, E, land

14

shall not be offered for sale, lease or rent in any

15

subdivision nor options or agreements for the

16

purchase, sale, leasing or rental of land made until

17

approval for recordation of the final plat is

18

granted by the director.

19

So all of this is occurring. We know that

20

it's violating this County Code right here. And I

21

would ask that the preliminary application be voided

22

on this alone, or at least are we going to

23

selectively allow some things to be enforced in

24

County Code and others not? We're going to say

25

that, yes, they can have the number of lots because
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1

of the clause in the Ag. Zoning Ordinance, but we

2

don't have to follow this presale requirement that

3

something have final subdivision approval before

4

sale? It's clearly in violation of this.

5

Also at the Smart Growth Conference I noted
when State Planning Director David Blane said we

7

must stop the unfettered proliferation of the

8

subdivision of our ag. lands. That's what's at

9

stake here. This violates the purpose and intent of

10

the Ag. Ordinance. Recently the State Land Use

11

Commission did require on appeal that a similar

12

subdivision on the Big Island be required to get a

13

district boundary amendment to take this out of Ag.

14

in the State designation and put it in Rural or

15

Urban.

16

I think that we need a comment from our Long

17

Range Planner here and Planning Director rather than

18

just pick up where we -- where we left off in 1995

19

and assume that the County is the same place it is

20

now that it was then. Clearly it's not.

21

MS. OGATA: Three minutes.

22

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Rob.

23

MR. PARSONS: Thank you.

24

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any questions for Mr. Parsons?

25

Hearing none, thank you. We have Christina
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Hemmings., who will be concluding her testimony.
MS. HEMMING: I'll try to get my caffeine buzz down. I'm
sorry. I'm Christina Hemming.
What I was just going to finish up with

5

saying is since it's all about cutting a deal, I

6

would like to support the County to cut a deal with

7

A&B. If they really want Mr. Smith to be the front

8

person on this subdivision, then cut a deal with

9

that bike right-of-way path and the straightening

10

out of Baldwin Avenue. Have them annex off 40 or 60

11

feet on the westerly -- on the easterly side of

12

Baldwin Avenue and put in a green -- greenbelt and a

13

bike path off of the road to reduce the liability of

14

the County for people riding on a bike down adjacent

15

to a car down the road.

16

Or the other deal that I would ask you to

17

negotiate, if you do so choose to violate the Ag.

18

Bill, is to ask A&B to donate all the makai lands in

19

Paia from the Paia Youth Center to Baldwin Beach,

20

including Baldwin Beach. Get the County out of the

21

lease with Baldwin Beach. Have them donate that

22

land to the County. They can take the tax write-off

23

and then they'll have -- then they'll have the

24

little urbanized, you know, little subdivision up

25

there in between Haliimai1e, Paia and Makawao. I
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mean, really, at this point everybody is grasping

2

and, you know, the long range plan really does need

3

to be taken into account. So if you're going to

4

straighten out Baldwin Avenue, how much is that

5

going to cost? If you're going to put in a bike

6

pathway, get Federal funds, how much is that going

7

to cost? What the best long-term solution -- really

8

there should be better roadways and they should be

9

required and to put in their $5,000 per unit and we

10

should have consistency. If they want to get the

11

subdivision, they should have to give a little bit

12

to the County.

13

And I suppose I should direct this question

14

to Mr. Goode. If this subdiVision violates -- or

15

the County Corp -- if this subdiviSion violates

16

the -- the State and County Ag. Bill and law, what

17

about all the other subdivisions in Haiku that have

18

been done on ag. lands? Should the Planning and the

19

Land Use Departments stop issuing building permits

20

for all other lands zoned Agricultural?

21

And, once again, I would just like to remind

22

you to please discuss the -- the tax revenue that

23

would be generated for the County, because I'm sure

24

they will want to pay the least amount of taxes.

25

How much real money are we talking about that the
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1

County would derive from allowing this urbanization

2

of this land to take place?

3

Thank you very much.

4
5

6
7

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Christina.
Members, any questions for Christina?
Hearing none, thank you.
Members, we have one more testifier, a person
wants to testify today on Item 60. We have

9
10

Nikhilananda.
And if there is any other members in the

11

gallery who would like to testify, please come up to

12

the secretary's desk. If -- when Mr. Nikhilananda

13

is finished and if there are no other testifiers,

14

the Chair will close testimony on all items for

15

today's meeting.

16

MR. NIKHILANANDA: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the

17

Committee. Thank you for the opportunity to testify

18

about this issue. Many months ago when I first saw

19

the -- and heard through -- Oh, thank you, Dain. My

20

name is Nikhilananda and I'm a resident and a

21

landowner in Huelo.

22

When I first heard through the grapevine

23

about this development -- I actually taught at the

24

Maunaolu campus of Hawaii Job Corps for seven and a

25

half years, so for many; many years I used to drive
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past this exact location where this development is

2

planned. I think that it's not necessary to

3

reiterate some of the testimony that occurred before

4

me, because you have heard that, but I would

5

definitely agree that this is an ill-planned
development, ill conceived, and, of course, located

7

in a totally wrong place.
I want to direct specifically to something

9

that Christina was just alluding to. I don't think

10

that we should be making any trade-offs or deals.

11

When the Ag. Bill came before this Council, many of

12

the members that are sitting in this Council now

13

were not on the Council then, and many people said

14

that was the best deal that we could get at the

15

time. But people realized at the time that it was

16

filled with loopholes, it was flawed and people

17

would be able to drive a diesel through it. And

18

that's what's happening. This is a perfect example

19

of a development that should not happen.

20

And the specific thing I want to talk about

21

and I know I have talked to a lot of you in private

22

about this is this continuation of putting urban

23

type developments on ag. land. When are we going to

24

stop it, call a spade a spade. If we want to pave

25

over Maui, let's take the areas that we want to
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urbanize and develop them.
I just came from the Maui Tropical Plantation

3

and most of you were there. And driving along the

4

highway coming into Wailuku, there's all these new

5

developments wonderfully planned, nicely placed.
I'm going to guess that the land has gone through
the correct zoning, it's in the community plans of
what's necessary. It's a continual battle of the

9

people in the community fighting certain other

10

entities and it becomes an us and them, developers

11

and the community, in putting in these kind of

12

developments that should not be.

13

So here's one that it's easy for you guys to

14

stand up, stop it now. You know and I know that if

15

you need to find a way to do it, it can be done

16

either through an ordinance that's not being

17

followed or legislation or the Ag. Bill or whatever.

18

But it's an urban development. They call them

19

gentlemen's estates, big Wailea-type development

20

behind the gate Up-Country Maui. Urban sprawl.

21

MS. OGATA: Three minutes.

22

MR. NIKHILANANDA: Do I get my extra minute and then the

23

three minutes to complete?

24

CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.

25

MR. NIKHILANANDA: So I'll just -- Thank you, Mike.
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So I think the testimony before me has

2

probably covered all these areas. So I'm looking to

3

all of you. And I know that a few of you I actually

4

sent an e-mail months ago when I first heard about

5

this and said, hey, I've heard about this thing
going on. Check it out. I didn't think it was

7

going to be as bad as it is where the guy is selling

8

and developing 'em before he even owns it. So

9

there's so many issues, it's like a done deal. To

10

me it's one of the things that this Council should

11

90, stop it, put a -- that's it, finished. So

12

that's an -- it's really easy. It's ill placed,

13

shouldn't be there. If we want to -- if we want to

14

pave over Up-Country Maui, let's start taking the

15

areas, alluding to what Christina said, and, okay,

16

let's urbanize this, let's urbanize this, let's zone

17

this, urbanize, but let's not sprawl, put a

18

development between Paia and Makawao on a place

19

that's just a couple of feet above where a woman was

20

killed on a bicycle. And the entrance to this

21

development, of course, is on this curve. So, yeah,

22

maybe he's going to put it in a nicer place and try

23

to straighten it out, but, again, very simply, kill

24

it, shouldn't be there, it's not to be there.

25

It's bad enough what we have done to Makena.
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It's bad enough what we have done to Wailea. On

2

Friday I hope you guys will stand up and stop that

3

development. Let's not make Makawao, Paia,

4

Up-Country, Haiku the same as what we have done to

5

Kapalua and to South Maui. Stop this development.

6

It shouldn't be there. We don't need gated

7

communities. If we're going to put them in, go

8

through the zoning process, Smart Growth, pick the

9

areas of Maui that we want to have housing, that we

10

want to have light industrial, that we want to have

11

commercial and let's do it. Let's not keep on

12

putting all of these houses --

13

MS. OGATA: Four minutes.

14

MR. NIKHILANANDA: It's now out where I am in Huelo, these

15

big urban houses out on plots of land. Let's stop

16

it. And I know all of you guys and I know you're

17

going to stand up and do it. So thank you very

18

much. Thank you for the time and aloha. Happy

19

holidays.

20

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Nik. Members, any

21

questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank

22

you.

23

Okay. At this point, seeing no other

24

testifiers from the gallery, the Chair will

25

officially close testimony for today's items.
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. . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . • •
ITEM NO. 60: RE: MAUNAOLU PLANTATION SUBDIVISION AND ITS
RELATED LAND USE PROCESS (C.C. 01-288)

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, we have three items on the agenda.

5

Item No. 60, Item 32 and Item 38. We shall be --

6

commence first with Item 60, which relates to the

7

subdivision process applicable to the proposed

8

Maunaolu Plantation Subdivision. This matter has

9

been referred to the Public Works and Transportation

10

Committee to review the possibility of

11

nonconformance by the Department of Public Works and

12

Waste Management of subdivision regulations which

13

relates to the Maunaolu Plantation Subdivision.

14

Should any land use issues be brought up, Members,

15

we may choose to refer those issues to the Land Use

16

Committee.

17

The Chair has invited the Director of Public

18

Works and Waste Management for his comments and

19

overview; also the Director of Planning, Mr. John

20

Min; and from the State District Environmental

21

Health Department, the Program Chief, Mr. Herbert

22

Matsubayashi, if he is -- there he is. Mr.

23

Matsubayashi, thank you. And also a representative

24

from A&B Properties, which I believe is Mr. Charles

25

Loomis, whom you heard from earlier, and the
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1

representative from the Maunaolu Associates, Michele

2

Chouteau.

3
4
5

So, first of all, the Chair would like to ask
Mr. Goode to give his overview on thiS matter.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I think I would just
prefer to answer specific questions from the

7
8
9

members.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you, Mr. Goode.
Any comments from the Director of Planning at

10

this time before we proceed with questions?

11

MR. MIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, likewise, I'll

12
13

be available to respond to any questions.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

14

The communication did come from Councilmember

15

Johnson, so I would yield the microphone to you, Ms.

16

Johnson.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
I -- in our binders you'll see a series of

19

questions which we were asked to basically prepare

20

and they were composed basically from the comments

21

made from the community. Some of the members

22

present here today or some of the constituents had

23

asked specific questions with regard to this

24

particular development. I also see -- and I don't

25

know if he's still here, but Mr. Craddick was in the
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audience earlier.
I think particularly the two issues that I

3

would like to at least pose questions on right now

4

would be the issue with regard to the water and also

5

the issue with regard to the legality of the actual

6

subdivision.

7

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Johnson. We'll have

8

the subdivision question answered first by Mr.

9

Goode. And, Mr. Craddick, if you could come up and

10

take a seat here, you can answer any questions with

11

regards to the water. Oh. And Mr. Matsubayashi,

12

too. And Mr. Craddick and Mr. Matsubayashi, if you

13

would like to have a seat up -- this one or the

14

other. Okay.

15
16

Okay. Mr. Goode, would you like to respond
to Ms. Johnson's question.

17

MR. GOODE: I'm still waiting for a question.

18

CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, I'm sorry. Was --

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The questions are in the binder.

20

And I don't know if it would be appropriate for,

21

let's say, Planning and Public Works Director, the

22

first question, when there --

23
24
25

VICE-CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, point of
information.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This -- this is on November --
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CHAIR MOLINA: Hang on, Jo Anne, excuse me. Mr. Kane.

2

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Just so we all know where we're at, it's

3

in the binder, can you give us a date and a document

4

that we can specifically look at?

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's the November 30th transmittal

6

to Michael Molina from our office and it's -- the

7

document's entitled Questions for Resource People on

8

Maunaolu Plantation Subdivision.

9

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

10

CHAIR MOLINA: It's near the end of the binder, Mr. Kane.

11

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Thank you.

12

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Proceed, Ms. Johnson.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. The first question, and I'll

14

just state it for the record, is: When the Planning

15

Director in 1995 recommended denial of the

16

preliminary subdivision approval, could that have

17

stopped the County from issuing a preliminary

18

approval and could the Planning Department. have

19

imposed a condition of final approval that the

20

developer show to the County a plan for agricultural

21

use of the land? That was the first question.

22

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. This one, I guess, is for either Mr.

23

Goode or Mr. Min. Who wants to go first?

24

MR. GOODE: I'll take it, Chair. Thanks. I didn't have

25

that in my binder, so I apologize, but I do have a
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copy of it here in front of me now.
We need to step back in time a little bit.

3

1994, 1995 the Charter of the County of Maui

4

specifically stated that the Department of Public

5

Works and Waste Management was responsible for

6

zoning ordinances. You may recall in 1996 this was

7

a charter amendment that was on the ballot and

8

passed overwhelming by the County of Maui, much to

9

our delight, because zoning enforcement and

10

administration is a difficult task and we felt and

11

the voters felt that that task was best handled in

12

the Planning Department. Nevertheless, in 1994,

13

1995 and the -- excuse me, I'm battling a little bit

14

of a cold here. We had responsibility for that

15

enforcement and administration.

16
17
18

The -- the letter from then Planning Director
Brian Miskae that's being referred to recommended
- denial of the subdivision based on provisions of HRS

19

205.12, if I recall correctly, about agricultural

20

use. The -- while I personally wasn't involved at

21

that particular juncture, the Department's position

22

is -- is going to be one you're -- A common theme

23

you're going to hear from me today on this is

24

consistency. The fact is at that time the County

25

zoning was declared to be none, there was no zoning
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on agricultural lands at that time. And that's in
the file, too, as noted by one of our plan checkers,
3

that the County zoning was none. And that there had

4

been in the past quite a few agricultural

5

subdivisions of 2-acres size and we saw no reason
that we should change our policy or our

7

interpretation of HRS 205.12 at that time. And

8

coming back to the issue of consistency, we felt

9

that this subdivision, along with the others that

10

had preceded it, deserved the same respect, the same

11

treatment under the law.

12

205.12, I believe, deals with agricultural

13

use. Agricultural subdivisions of any size have to

14

enter into an agreement, and Corporation Counsel can

15

get into the agreement, that covers the provisions

16

of 205.12 that the land must be used for

17

agricultural purposes. That's our enforcement

18

mechanism. Those of you in the audience or the

19

Council members that were here for the Ag. Bill, we

20

had a. lot of discussion -- now the Ag. Ordinance --

21

about what's a farm and who's the farm police, what

22

constitutes a farm. But most of us agree that one

23

can see a farm, we know it when we see it. But,

24

nevertheless, to enforce that is really difficult.

25

And the purpose of the agreement is to bind the land
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which has on this subdivision and other subdivisions

2

that the owners of the land in perpetuity have to

3

conform to 205.12. That's our enforcement

4

mechanism.

5
6
7

So the concerns that were raised in that memo
'94, '95 regarding 205.12 are dealt with the
agreement and at that time Department of Public

8

Works was in charge of zoning and we treated that

9

subdivision the same way we treated the others.

10

Subsequent to '95 a number of things happened; the

11

interim zoning opinion by John Rapacz and then the

12

Ag. Ordinance which passed in December '98. We can

13

talk about those later, but I think that should

14

answer your question.

15

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Ms. Johnson.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I'm going to skip over to

17

Mr. Craddick, since he did send a letter, also. And

18

basically I would like him to just give us a -- a

19

summary in his own words of what he's basically

20

stating here, because I think it's relatively clear

21

that this does not meet the test set forth under our

22

laWs and I would just like him to explain his

23

position.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Before we proceed, Mr.
Craddick, Members, for your information, we just
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1

received a letter from the Department of Water

2

Supply this morning which you should all have from

3

Mr. Craddick, for your information.

4

5
6
7

Proceed, Mr. Craddick.
MR. CRADDICK: Okay. Basically the project, I guess, is
propoSing a single well. And the only way I get
this information is from the State Water Commission.

8

A well drilling permit was issued to them. And our

9

standards, although they are not rules, require that

10

that facility meet max day demand with an operating

11

time of 16 hours simultaneous with fire flow

12

independent of any reservoir. And the standby unit

13

may be used to determine total fire flow, or a

14

criteria maximum day demand during duration of fire

15

plus fire demand less three quarters of the

16

reservoir storage.

17

And with one well, we do not believe an ag.

18

subdivision which requires 5,000 gallons per acre

19

per day as the average day demand, that that

20

facility will meet that. And I'll -- I have some

21

other comments here about the Health Department, but

22

I'll let Herb discuss those.

23

The other issue is that if they are doing a

24

well, we have a procedure that we have to follow

25

because of our DBCP settlement case where we
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1

actually have to get approval of the defendants in

2

that case when we locate a well, otherwise the well

3

will not be able to be covered under that agreement

4

should the well go bad. And I -- I don't believe

5

anything has been done along those lines. So if

6

this system -- it was ever contemplated that this

7

system would be able to be turned over to the Board

8

of Water Supply without meeting those requirements,

9

I'm not certain that it -- they would be acceptable

10

to the board because if it went bad, it wouldn't be

11

covered under that agreement.

12

So for those reasons, we're recommending that

13

until these issues are resolved, that this matter

14

not move forward.

15
16
17
18

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Craddick.
Mr. Matsubayashi, would you like to offer any
comments at this time?
MR. MATSUBAYASHI: The only comment I have to offer is

19

that State Department of Health hasn't approved the

20

system or the source.

21

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.

23

Mr. Craddick, also I noticed that one of the

24

testifiers and also some of the correspondence that

25

we have in our files alluded to the fact that there
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1

might be contaminants in the area. And in one of

2

the items in the binder it had stated that it used

3

to be a dumping site of some type. Are you familiar

4

with that?

5

MR. CRADDICK: There are some maps that show a dump site

6

nearby. Now, whether that was - you know, whether

7

it was just municipal dumping or -- or disposal of

8

other things, I am not aware of.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In your experience, would that

10

contribute to any contamination, though, either at

11

groundwater or well water in the area if there were

12

contaminants leaching into the soil?

13

MR. CRADDICK: Well, I -- I don't know enough about the

14

dump site, really, to, you know, say one way or the

15

other there. I mean, just -- if stuff has just been

16

dumped on the ground, depending on what it is, it

17

does have the chance to go (end of tape 1, side A)

18

speaking.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you. I -- you know,

20

there's -- there is other questions that are in --

21

in our binder, but one of the things that I would

22

like to do because everybody has a copy of them, I

23

would like to at least let other people, you know,

24

who are members of the Committee ask their questions

25

instead of me just going down the line. I'think
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1

that at some point these questions, if they're not

2

able to be answered today, hopefully they would be

3

able to answer -- be answered either in written form

4

or at some future meeting so that, you know, we

5

would at least be able to respond to the public's

6

questions and our questions.

7

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
Okay. For the time being we'll go and ask

9

the other members if they have questions for any of

10

our Department Heads from the Water Department,

11

Public Works --

12

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.

13

CHAIR MOLINA: -- Planning. Mr. Kane.

14

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Just one question and just to

15

start off, I guess one of the testifiers brought up

16

a reference to the General Plan and the reference to

17

certain types of developments on agricultural land.

18

And Mr. Goode also brought up a comment about being

19

consistent. So my question would be: Is the policy

20

of trying to be consistent in line with being

21

consistent with the General Plan? And I -- and I

22

ask that because it seems like what was stated in

23

testimony and the -- and how it was presented, it's

24

showing that we're not being consistent or that that

25

aspect of the General Plan is being ignored and yet
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is diaithing that the position of the --

1

our Director

2

of the Department at that time was to be consistent

3

and treat each applicant fairly. However, what's

4

stated in the General Plan is -- as presented in

5

public testimony seems to be at face value right now

6

inconsistent. So if maybe the Director can -- can

7

maybe shed some light as to why there's a perceived

8

inconsistency --

9
10

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kane.
Mr. Min, can you respond to that?

11

VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- in that policy.

12

MR. GOODE: If I could, I'll answer

a little bit because

13

you refer to my comment on consistency and then

14

perhaps Mr. Min can talk a little bit

15
16

.

CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: My feeling is that the General Plan, which I

17

believe was passed in '91, by using terms like

18

discourage -- discourage is a long way from shall

19

not. Discourage to me set the stage for the Ag.

20

Bill, for the discussion that was a lengthy

21

discussion in this Chambers about, well, what is ag.

22

and what is acceptable? And in the final analysis,

23

the unique way that this County handled what -- what

24

is to be discouraged was to have a sliding scale.

25

And the law that was passed, again, by the end of
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1

'98, said it's okay to have seven 2-acre lots in a

2

subdivision, and then from 5s, 10s, 25s, and all

3

that. I believe that that General Plan language set

4

the stage for the discussion so we finally could

5

pass out an Ag. Ordinance that met our needs.

6
7

So from '91 to '98 -- so '94, '95, we're
still treating everybody the same. It's hard to say
to someone, no, you can't do this because it says to

9

discourage. I think discourage to me says we as a

10

body, administrative and legislature side, need to

11

come up with something. And I think that was

12

uniquely handled. Because right now if someone were

13

to come in with a 15-acre piece of property that's

14

supposedly good for a small farm and do seven 2-acre

15

lots, totally within the law. And it still says

16

discourage. So I think we're consistent.

17

CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Mr. Kane.

18

VICE-CHAIR KANE:, Thank you. And I am just posing the

19

question because as a matter of public testimony it

20

was presented in such a way for us to consider what

21

the language is in the General Plan. And so I guess

22

my follow-_up would be, and you have kind of answered

23

it, David, just for clarity, though, is although the

24

language was used as discouraged, are you saying

25

that the policy of the Department at the time they
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had the authority over zoning was to not discburage

2

it? Because it seems like you're saying that it was

3

almost encourage because the consistency in line was

4

because others came before that, that to be

5

consistent means to consistently approve these types
of requests, not consistency within line with what

7

the intent of the General Plan was, which was to

8

discourage. So I -- again, I'm just trying to

9

understand, you know, was there -- was there a

10

tendency to ignore that discourage statement? I

11

mean, yes, discourage is a long way from shall, but

12

discourage also represents the intent of the policy

13

makers of that General Plan. And it seems like it

14

was ignored because it went ahead and treated

15

everybody consistently with the encourage, not the

16

diScourage. So, you know, I don't know if even

17

that's a question, Mr. Chair. I'm just maybe just

18

drawing a conclusion on it 'cause it's just --

19

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Semantics -- semantics can get a

20

little confusing sometimes, so -- Good point, M r

21
22

Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I think it goes farther than semantics,

23

but, you know, consistency means consistently let's

24

move forward and approve them and, you know, wait

25

until 1998 before we have something there, which --
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anyway, thanks

2

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kane.

3

Members? Ms. Tavares.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. Maybe, Mr. Goode,

5

you could address that other concern that was

6

brought up by one of the testifiers about the

7

advertising and the sale of properties before final

8

subdivision and that seems to be against what our --

9

our laws say.

10

MR. GOODE: That's something that we're going to have to

11

look into. Because the fact is that in this

12

particular case it's being advertised, but often

13

there's a lot of land that's for sale that only

14

brokers know about, that isn't generally advertised.

15

And it would have to be something that has to be

16

generally brought to our attention some way or some

17

form. We don't have folks running around looking

18

for land that might be for sale that -- whether or

19

not it has preliminary or subdivision approval or

20

not. But I'm going to -- I'm going to work with

21

Corporation Counsel on this and find out what the

22

appropriate action is supposed to be.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But that is -- that is our law,

24

that it is not supposed to be offered for sale to

25

like the general public or something? I mean, I
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1

didn't pull my code out to look at what the law

2

says.

3

MR. GOODE: Yeah, it -- that's basically what it says,

4

shall not be offered for sale, lease or rent in any

5

subdivision until approval for recommendation of

6

final plan is granted by the Director.

7
8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So that they don't have final plan
yet?

9

MR. GOODE: Right. So we're going to find out what the

10

appropriate action is. It's in some sense,

11

generally, you know, things that are for sale and

12

the regulations regarding real estate transactions

13

is handled by the Department of Commerce and

14

Consumer Affairs, but this is in Title 18, so we're

15

going to -- we'll figure out what we've got to do.

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. It is on the
internet, by the way, that everyone has access to.
MR. GOODE: Right. But we don't spend staff hours looking
through the internet
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So no one has brought this to your
attention specifically?
MR. GOODE: -- trying to find out what's for sale.
What's that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No one has brought this to your
attention specifically, the fact that --
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1

MR. GOODE: Today.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- the fact that this is being

3
4

advertised? No, prior to today.
MR. GOODE: Possibly, I -- I don't recall.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.

6

MR. GOODE: I don't think so.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: All right. Thank you.

8

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Craddick.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Now, Mr. Chairman, I know this is

10

in the Public Works Committee and I guess it's to

11

determine as far as from the Public Works side of

12

what this subdivision process has been, but it

13

actually eventually, if it goes anywhere, it goes

14

through the Land Use Committee. So, you know, I'm

15

looking for your guidance as to what you want to do,

16

but as far as I'm concerned now, information is so

17

incomplete -- not information, but I think that the

18

letter that we got from Mr. Craddick regarding the

19

water, that would stop the project dead, to me. And

20

rather than, you know, spend any more time

21

discussing the prOject, I think that it -- this item

22

either be referred to Land Use Committee and until

23

things are -- are done properly or whatever, then we

24

can consider it in Land Use. But I think as far as

25

Public Works Committee, I have enough information to
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actually file this, or file it out of this

2

Committee. If it wants to go on to Land Use

3

Committee, then I think that's appropriately where

4

some other discussions should occur.

5

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Ms. Tavares.

6
7

Mr. Carroll, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I think I agree with Mrs. [sic]

8

Tavares, really, about her proposal, but I do have

9

one question that I would like to ask Mr. Craddick.

10

In our folder, the one November 14th, toward the

11

back they have over here an advertisement for the

12

Maunaolu Estate and one part over here has, the well

13

pump has now been installed and we are happy to

14

report there is abundance of fresh, clear water.

15

Does Mr. Craddick know anything about this?

16
17
18

MR. CRADDICK: I know they had a rig up there drilling the
well. That's about all I know.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Again, I think I agree with

19

Councilmember Tavares and I will hold the rest of my

20

questions. Thank you.

21

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Before I continue

22

with Mr. Hokama's request for question, the

23

developer's representative would like to respond to

24

I believe it was Ms. Tavares's remarks.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I object.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mn Chairman, yeah, I object,
also.

3

VICE-CHAIR KANE: And I object, too, Mr. Chairman.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: This is totally inappropriate for

5

them to come back to respond at this point. It's in

6

discussion now. It's up to this body, really, to

7

figure out what to do with this project. There are

8

clearly I think some issues that need to be resolved

9

by the developer, but not with us. It's to be

10

resolved with Administration as far as meeting all

11

of the requirements and complying to the existing

12

laws. So I don't believe that -- that we -- you

13

know, it is appropriate for us to have a debate

14

going on with us and the developer at this point.

15

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. If that is the will of the body, the

16

Chair will honor that. So my apologies to the

17

developer's representative. Since we are now in

18

full discussion at this point, any

19

any concerns, you can send them to us in writing and

20

we'll respond to them.

21
22
23

if you have

We have Mr. Hokama, to be followed by Ms.
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if I may ask Corporation

24

Counsel, I would think that you would also -- or

25

I've got a couple of points. My first one is that
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in listening to my colleague frOm Up-Country, Ms.

2

Tavares, I would also hope that you would follow

3

through with the Consumer Protection Agency or the

4

State as well as the Realtors Commission on what is

5

appropriate action that can be done for anything

6

found to be in nonconformance or illegal regarding

7

the use of certain marketing or advertising tactics.

8
9

What -- what I really want to know now is
what is the Council's options regarding this

10

specific subdivision proposal? Can the Council

11

enact, an ordinance or pass a resolution that

12

prohibits this subdivision from moving forward? Do

13

we have no say in this subdivision approval? What

14

are our options?

15

MR. GARNEAU: Well, by that are you asking me --

1.6

VICE-CHAIR KANE: If you can speak into the mike, please.

17

MR. GARNEAU: Yeah. In terms of this particular one, it's

18

at -- it got preliminary approval and it is

19

grandfathered in under the Ag. Ordinance. So is

20

your question relating to the final approval or

21

the -- the preliminary approval?

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Final approval.

23

MR. GARNEAU: Okay. Well, with regards to final approval,

24

it still has to be approved by all the departments

25

and the Department of Health, Water, it has to --
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I understand that, Corporation

2

Counsel. I am asking you what is the Council's or

3

this Committee's options that we have before us?

4

I'm not concerned about the department's

5

responsibility or -- I want to know what is our

6

options as a legislative branch.

7

MR. GARNEAU: Well, in terms of -- you know, referring it
to, as Ms. Tavares said, to Land Use Committee, you
can do that. But I guess I need some more

10

specificity about what you would like -- what you're

11

thinking about doing. If you're thinking about, you

12

know, changing the ordinance or --

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm asking you. You're the legal

14

counsel to this Committee. You need to tell me you

15

have no jurisdiction in this matter, yes, you have

16

jurisdiction if you wish to exercise it, and you can

17

either send a resolution to the Department that says

18

the Council hereby wishes to prohibit the final

19

approval of this request or you can say the Council

20

must pass an ordinance to change the code if it

21

wishes to make changes on how things will be

22

approved for final approval under the Ag. Zoning

23

category. That is what I am looking to you for your

24

option.

25

MR. GARNEAU: I understand. And at this point your
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function is as Oversight of the -- what the

2

Administration has done. And that was how this was

3

presented to us today and what we were asked to talk

4

about. So out of this Committee in terms of, you

5

know, stopping this or passing some ordinance, I

6

would say, no, right now it's -- your function is

7

administrative. That said, this still is not at

8

final approval. If you would like to know from our

9

office an opinion as to if we were to pass some

10

resolution that would affect this property, what

11

would be the authority and the ramifications of

12

that, you know, I'll be happy to give you a legal

13

opinion, but I believe that's more complicated than

14

I could just answer right now without doing

15

research. But I -- you know, on the option of

16

resolution to change the ordinance, I would like

17

some time to give you a full and complete answer.

18

But in terms of this right now, in terms of

19

oversight, I don't believe you have the authority

20

to -- today to make a change in this -- in the

21

process, but I think it needs -- it's already been

22

preliminarily approved, it's been grandfathered

23

underneath the ordinance, it has to go through final

24

approval and then the developer needs to meet all

25

the conditions that have been set forth, including
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2

water and some of the Other things that were brought
up today.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.

4

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Min. Chairman, please.

6

CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed. Mr. Min.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So under the old conditions and

8

requirements and the new Ag. Law, 19.30A, what would

9

this project not be required to fulfill from the

10

existing code? John, can you share with us with

11

that --

12

MR. MIN: Let me see if I understand your question. Are

13

you asking if this project were to come in today

14

under the current Agricultural Zoning law, what

15

would the requirements be and how different would

16

they be relative to the prior law? Is that

17

basically your question?

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's correct.

19

MR. MIN: Okay. Well, first of all, the big difference

20

would be that in terms of the number of developable

21

lots, it would be based upon the sliding scale

22

formula.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.

24

MR. MIN: Okay. As I understand this particular

25

subdivision, it was -- the original parcel was
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something like 2,50,0 acres and it was in pineapple

2

cultivation. And out of the 2,500 acres, I believe

3

somewhere around 85, 86 acres have been carved out

4

for this particular subdivision. So roughly 3

5

percent of that larger parcel is being proposed for

6

this subdivision. Because the subdivision was

7

applied for back in 1994, approved in 1995, which

8

was well before the change in the Agricultural

9

Zoning law which came in December '98, it was not

10

subject to the sliding scale. So at that time they

11

were -- a developer was allowed to do these 2-acre

12

lots and unlimited number of 2-acre lots. But,

13

again, in this particular case, out of the 2,500

14

acres there's only about 85 or 86 acres that are

15

actually part of this development. But the -- to

16

answer your question, the main difference would be

17

the application of the sliding scale.

18
19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So everything else in the current
code, Mr. Min, would be applicable to this project?
MR. MIN: In the -- well, you say current code, you're
talking about the current agricultural zoning?

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's correct.

23

MR. MIN: Yeah. In terms of the actual development of

24

each parcel, okay, the setback requirements, the

25

permitted uses, the current Agricultural Zoning
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2
3

Ordinance would govern.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. In their CC&Rs or in their
proposed CC&Rs, I think that's the more appropriate

4

way to phrase it, they have a lot of restrictions

5

and it almost is like, you going to buy agricultural

6

land, but you cannot do agricultural activities.

7

CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Mr. Hokama, are -- we starting
to get into Ag. Zoning issues here, which I think

9

are very good questions, but I think it would be

10

more appropriate to have this discussion in another

11

committee. I would like to focus on the Public

12

Works aspect of today's agenda item. So if you

13

would like to continue at this point, if it has ties

14

to Public Works, you can proceed. But at the same

15

time, the Chair is at this point looking at a

16

suggeStion that was made by Ms. Tavares of having

17

this

18

project continuing or being stopped, having this

19

item possibly referred to Land Use.

20
21

as far as any items which relates to the

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's what I'm leading to,
Chairman.

22

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Proceed.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That is a reasonable option for

24

this Committee to recommend to full Council a

25

resolution to put an immediate moratorium on any
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further final subdivisiOn approvals of ag. lands.

2

That is within our authority.

3

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.

5

CHAIR MOLINA: That may be something to consider.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that is what I would like to

7

know is the reasonable option for a legislative body

8

such as ours.

9

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If we're finding that the zoning of

11

agricultural lands and our intent is being abused or

12

totally nonconforming with, then maybe we need to

13

make changes. You know, we've talked about looking

14

at tax rates to try and penalize those that want to

15

use ag. land for nonagricultural use, well, maybe

16

this is another option for us to consider. I don't

17

know what is fair or not at this point. I do know

18

don't appreciate being put in these type of

19

situations where the good intent of our Council and

20

our people is being -- trying to be manipulated in a

21

way that where we're trying to project or move

22

forward to in a direction is being totally warped

23

and disfigured to something else. And so, Chairman,

24

that's why I was bringing up the point of the ag.

25

side, because this relates to the basic philosophy

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

55

PWT 12/5/01

1

of what we want our ag. lands to do, provide large

2

scale lot development versus agricultural activity?

3

Then why wouldn't we then consider just increasing

4

lot sizes on the rural and saying this is actually

5

one rural development with large acreage and tax

6

them at the right rate and let them have the

7

permitted uses and then you don't need the CC&Rs

8

that say you cannot have chickens, you can't have

9

more than six horses, you cannot do this, you cannot

10
11

do that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I think you bring up some very good

12

points, Mr. Hokama, and my apologies to you for

13

interrupting you during your line of questioning

14

there, but I guess for me I was -- I just wanted to

15

keep us focused more so on the Public Works aspects.

16

But as Ms. Tavares had stated earlier, for herself

17

and some of the other members, the issues of that

18

have been answered, but you do bring up good points.

19

You can -- Do you have any other comments or

20

questions for any of our Department Heads at this

21

time?

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would ask both Directors, since

23

under the Ag. Chapter, Mr. Chairman, the

24

administration of the Ag. Chapter 19.30A is between

25

the two Directors sitting here this morning before
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us. I think -- and that's appropriate, I thank you

2

for bringing them here, and I would really like to

3

hear what they think regarding this administration

4

on this Chapter, whether one end of the spectrum of

5

a moratorium for final approval be -- be a

6

reasonable consideration or not.

7

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Goode or Mr. Min, would you like
to respond to that?
MR. MIN: Yeah. I think at this time I would like to

10

reserve any comment on that until we have had a

11

chance to confer and take a look at some of the

12

implications of that. And that would be my comment.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. GOODE: I have a couple quick comments. I --

15

Councilman Hokama, I realize you weren't on the

16

Council when they passed the Ag. Ordinance, but let

17

me read you one more sub -- you were? '98? Oh,

18

sorry. Okay. Small subsection -- Sorry, Riki.

19

This has to do with the sliding scale, the last

20

paragraph, 19.30A.030(G) states, the subsection

21

shall not apply to any lot which received

22

preliminary subdivision approval prior to the

23

effective date of the ordinance, December 31st,

24

1998, and receives final subdivision after the

25

effective date of sub ordinance -- of said
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ordinance. That's the case today. Okay. The

2

subsequent lots resulting from such subdivisions

3

shall be -- the subsequent lots resulting from such

4

subdivisions shall be subject to this subsection.

5

Okay. That policy basically states that --

6

states it on the face, if it has preliminary

7

subdivision approval prior, it's grandfathered in.

8

Okay. So if we're going to have the discussion on

9

the moratorium, it would be an interesting

10

discussion because you're going to have to rectify

11

how that was -- that was passed and that was

12

specifically added, you know, to this -- this bill

13

which became law. So it should be an interesting

14

discussion to go back and try to nullify that. It's

15

important for the Council and I think maybe in

16

Language Committee it would be interesting to

17

discuss because at least in my opinion, you know,

18

this subdivision is being picked on, but there are

19

some issues that probably should be discussed

20

relating to agricultural subdivisions. Because

21

agricultural subdivisions are -- are perfectly

22

allowable under the law, whether it's the old

23

standards, if they're grandfathered, or the new

24

standards. Because under the new standards you can

25

come in and you can do twelve 2-acre lots.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's right.

2

MR. GOODE: Yeah. So --

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Provided they meet the conditions

4
5

of approval and -- or standards of approval, though.
MR. GOODE: That's correct. And that's why this one

6

hasn't received final yet. And in final subdivision

7

approval keep in mind that the subdivision plat and

8

the construction plans get sent to every Department.

9

It will be sent to the Department of Health. The

10

Department of Health, if it's okay with them, will

11

write back to us and say, okay, the -- to issue

12

final. It will be sent to Department of Water

13

Supply, okay to issue final. Okay. If it's not

14

okay, it's going to be up to the applicant to go to

15

those agencies and work it out. So that's where

16

coming back to what Public Works has got to do, the

17

process that we're in now, you know, this is

18

specifically grandfathered under the ordinance. And

19

if we're going to have the discussion on the

20

potential moratorium, it would be an interesting

21

discussion because we're going to have to rectify,

22

you know, what was passed. But, you know, that's up

23

to the Council.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, David, I appreciate
those comments.
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1

Corporation -- Chairman, if I may.

2

CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Corporation Counsel, do you have

4
5

anything to share to us at this time?
MR. GARNEAU: No, I -- I just agree with Mr. Goode's

6

comments. And as I said, if the Council does want

7

to look at, you know, possibly amending the Ag.

8

Ordinance or looking at a moratorium, I would be

9

more than happy to, you know, give you a legal

10

opinion and work with you on that. And I -- just

11

one other --

12

CHAIR MOLINA: Can you speak into the mike?

13

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Speak into the mike.

14

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.

15

MR. GARNEAU: Just one, other follow-up on the issue of the

16

grandfathering, when you talk about this particular

17

parcel, they have -- it goes all the way back to '95

18

and we did give preliminary approval. And judging

19

by the discussion here today, the developer and the

20

owner have spent -- expended funds in reliance on

21

our preliminary approval. You know, they have at

22

least started the water and so forth. So to that

23

extent, they may have some, you know, vested rights

24

and because they have relied on our preliminary

25

approval to go forward expending money.
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3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: They relied on speculation of a
final approval.
MR. GARNEAU: That's right. But -- but, I mean, because

4

of the agricultural amendments in 1998 specifically

5

grandfathered some to 2 acres, so we would have to

6

look -- The reason why I wanted

7

have time to look at the law for you, because we

8

would have to take that into consideration. What

9

effect does that ordinance have, what does their

would like to

10

reliance have on it, and so what could -- how would

11

we be able to deal with that in terms of this

12

particular project? So there's sort of two issues,

13

Mr. Hokama, that you're getting at. This project in

14

particular and overall whether our Agricultural Code

15

is serving the purpose for which it was intended

16

when it passed in 1998.
So, you know, those are my comments. There

17
18

may be some rights that we have to deal with and

19

look at for this one particular project, but also

20

for all projects we may want to look at that, too.

21

So I just want to express my willingness to, you

22

know, look into it further, but I think it's more

23

complicated than we can just decide in a few minutes

24

here.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Corporation
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1

Counsel.

2

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Hokama?

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

4

CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

5
6

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I -- because there are so

7

many issues that are still unanswered, particularly

8

as they relate to the Public Works Department, even

9

they -- You keep speaking about grandfathering. One

10

of the questions in the documentation is gaps within

11

the 15-day time extensions. Where -- where is the

12

provision in our law that addresses when you let

13

that lapse, that it automatically grandfathers you

14

in? Where is that? I would like to see that.

15

Because, you know, when you miss a deadline, hello,

16

you go back to square one. And that's why I really

17

think that the public has made a very valid case for

18

there not being any vesting.

19

I had a conversation with Mr. Goode in which

20

I believe he -- you know still correct that when

21

you get a preliminary subdivision approval, it does

22

not entitle you to a final subdivision approval.

23

And I -- and I really concur with Mr. Hokama's

24

comments that, what is our role? You know, I mean,

25

if we're -- if we can make a statement, if we can

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

62

PWT 12/5/01

1

send a direction as to what we want, as a County, I

2

mean, we're supposed to be setting policy. The

3

Administration is carrying that policy out as best

4

they can. And I think, though, that when there is a

5

gap, when there are deadlines that have been missed,

6

I don't think that there should be grandfathering.

7

I don't see that as being valid. So I would like

8

that to be issued and I think that because there are

9

issues, Chairman, in your Committee that do relate

10

specifically to Public Works and to the legality of

11

even allowing this to continue because, you know,

12

the -- the onus is not on us as the County to make

13

sure that the applicant makes every deadline.

14

That's not our obligation. And this was before Mr.

15

Smith even took this over. If it -- if it has

16

elapsed, 'then it has elapsed. And since that has

17

been pointed out, I think that any discussion of

18

entitlements is certainly inappropriate at this

19

time.

20

The other question that I have that was

21

raised which may be appropriate to send on to Land

22

Use would be, I guess, the larger parcel. This was

23

just one little small part of a bigger parcel.

24

Well, when was that separated? Is it separated? Is

25

it still part of it? There's so many unanswered
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1

questions, but I think clearly that because there

2

are things relating to the subdivision and certain

3

things with -- which are within the authority of

4

this Committee and under your purview, I think that

5

before we make any decision, we should get these
questions answered and then the things that perhaps
do pertain specifically to land use, then send those

8
9

on.
But I think the Council really has an

10

obligation to also carry out State law, and State

11

law is very clear and there may be things in our Ag.

12

Bill that are not consistent with State law and that

13

is to protect agricultural land when we urbanize it.

14

This is very serious because we could even through

15

the Agricultural Bill that we have on the books be

16

in conflict with those directives under HRS. So

17

I -- I think these are questions that bear

18

answering. Some of them may not be in your

19

Committee, but I would like at least for you to

20

consider leaving the items in your Committee that do

21

pertain to it. And if there is a resolution that we

22

need to draft, even though it's nonbinding, perhaps

23

to at least send a message to the Administration we

24

do want to protect agricultural lands, we do want to

25

protect the farmers and our families and put urban

-
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2

3
4

5
6

where it belongs. And I think this is -- this is,
as Mr. Hokama stated, very appropriate for us to do.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
Members, any other questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's not a question, but a

7

comment. I think what Ms. Johnson is saying is very

8

true. You know, I would hold off sending this to

9

Land Use until we get the answers that were

10

requested either through written communication or

11

from conversation that happened here today. The

12

question that I have is is -- is this subdivision

13

subject to the HRS 2054-6 or whatever? It is?

14

MR. MIN: Yes, it is.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So the State -- State Land Use

16
17
18

classification is Ag., is Agriculture?
MR. MIN: That's my understanding. It's in the State
Agricultural District.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So then they would have to

20

comply with this. So you folks are looking at that

21

as they bring forward their -- their plans for how

22

they comply with that section of the State law? Is

23

that part of your -- your purview, Mr. Min?

24

MR. MIN: Gees, I don't know if I really can answer that.

25

You know, we -- whatever we get referred to us, you
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1

know, by Land Use and Codes, Public Works, we'll

2

take a look at relative to the application. I don't

3

think, for instance, we -- we get involved in --

4

Well, Public Works has -- has a standard agreement

5

for agricultural subdivisions and I believe in there

6

there are provisions regarding permissible uses,

7

compliance with Chapter 205 and so forth. So we

8

don't -- we don't really look at those specific

9

issues at that time.

10

Also, when the -- when the lot is actually

11

developed, when we see a building permit

12

application, that's another opportunity to review

13

again for consistency with Chapter 205. So there's

14

various points along in time that, you know, those

15

compliance issues will be looked at. The

16

subdivision level, you know, I would defer to Dave

17

if he had any additional comments on that in terms

18

of any specific items, but I think that agreement

19

that's executed at the time of -- well, prior to

20

final subdivision approval related to agricultural

21

lands does provide that compliance or, you know,

22

requirement for 205.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman, would it be possible

24

for us to get a copy of that, whatever happens, with

25

the form or whatever guidelines that the Public
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Works uses for the agricultural subdivisions?

-

CHAIR MOLINA: So noted. We'll make sure you get
(inaudible).
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because, you know, one of the
concerns that I have is -- you know, I know a lot of
us say this a lot and I've been saying it more and

7

more as, you know, I'm going through this career

8

here as a Council member, but if I knew then what I

9

know now, a whole lot of things would be different

10

as far as where I stood on certain things in the

11

County. And I am learning every day about something

12

else. And in a little -- in a way, it's very

13

disturbing that there's so much that I don't know.

14

And, you know, I appreciate when -- when things are

15

brought to our attention so that we can become

16

knowledgeable about certain areas. And I admittedly

17

know very little about State law and its application

18

to our County. We depend so much upon our

19

Corporation Counsel for seeing that when we draft an

20

ordinance, that those ordinances are in -- are in

21

concert with whatever State laws exist.

22

And since I was actively involved in the Ag.

23

Bill, I know that's one of the questions that we

24

asked was, was it in compliance with State law? And

25

we used part of the State law as a basis for
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developing our own Agricultural Zoning Law. So I

2

feel pretty comfortable that we are in compliance

3

there. But I am a little disturbed about if these

4

ag. subdivisions are supposed to have some sort of

5

agreement about their agricultural use, then where

6

are those agreements and how do they apply to -- to

7

a myriad of agricultural subdivisions that have
occurred all over the island or throughout our
County? And, you know, I fail to see some of the

10

connections between agriculture and some of these

11

agricultural areas. And, you know, let's call a

12,

spade a spade. If it's a 5-acre gentlemen's estate,

13

let's call it that and let's classify it correctly.

14

So I think that, you know, independently of

15

what's going on here, you know, I would like to look

16

at and hope Mr. Arakawa would also like to look at

17

possibly drafting an ordinance which will require

18

ag. subdivisions that are not doing ag. to be

19

rezoned to rural or residential so that we can get

20

this little haziness out of what happens with our

21

ag. lands. I mean, you know, I think times have

22

changed and rather rapidly in the last five years.

23

I would say that we need to seriously look at what's

24

happening to our agricultural lands. I mean,

25

they're -- if we want to preserve them, we got to
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1

make sure that are we preserving all ag. lands

2

classified A through F, or are we going to focus on

3

A and B classified lands? And let's look at if

4

we're going to develop -- look at developing for

5

future growth the F and E lands? I mean, those are

6

some of the questions that I think we need to come

7

to grips with as a Council that will impact the

8

future of our -- of our County.

9

And we've got to think beyond just now. We

10

do have to think in the future. And I hope that,

11

you know, people will understand when we take some

12

of these positions that we're trying to look out for

13

the best interests and the community has got to work

14

with us on these things.

15

And just in -- you know, and this is my last

16

closing comment. Mr. Smith has done some excellent

17

developments in Maui County. You know, I worked

18

with him in the past in some of his housing

19

developments on the west side and I think that this

20

is not about Mr. Smith because it seems that way

21

since he had another development that kind of bit

22

the dust in Paia. But what we're trying to look at

23

is a bigger picture, and the bigger picture is the

24

use of agricultural lands and I would -- I hope that

25

he's not taking this as a personal attack on him on
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1

this agricultural subdivision. I think we need to

2

clear up whatever needs to be cleared up with this

3

4
5

and in the meantime we have some work to do
regarding our agricultural uses.
And I thank you, Mr. Chair, for bringing this
up, and I think perhaps you should leave this in

7

your Committee for now until we get the answers that

8

were -- answers to the questions that were presented

9

by both Ms. Johnson and other members of the

10
11
12
13

Committee. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I question

14

whether we should leave it in this Committee or as

15

was proposed first time move it out. Because the

16

questions can be answered and still be referred to

17

Land Use and we could answer those questions over

18

there. And it seems like most of the issues before

19

us would be more appropriate in that Committee. And

20

there's nothing preventlng the answer -- you know,

21

collecting these answers and shifting everything

22

over there. And not only would it save a lot of

23

time, but I think it would be a more appropriate

24

place to put it

25

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. The Chair concurs
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with you, whichever method is cleaner.

1

I would like to acknowledge Mr. Arakawa,

2

who's in attendance. And as you have already heard,

3

this item -- well, portions of it will more than
likely get referred to your Committee. Any comments
from yOu, Mr. Arakawa?
7

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First of

8

all, I apologize, as we were leaving the same

9

function I was sort of asked by a citizen to listen

10

to some concerns so it took me a little bit longer

11

to get back here.
This topic and what we're talking about as

12
13

far as the Ag. Bill, it's within our purview in the

14

Land Use Committee. This specific topic, I think,

15

should also remain here for further discussion. As

16

part of the Ag. Bill one of the things that was

17

brought before me -- and if I missed this, I just

18

want to emphasize it -- is that agricultural

19

activities such as raising of animals, livestocks,

20

plowing, those kinds of things have to be allowed

21

and tolerated by anyone in Agricultural Districts

22

even if they're doing a gentlemen estate right next

23to
24
25

it.
The question I have in this -- in doing the
CC&Rs that were brought to my attention is that this
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1

tries to prohibit those types of activities. And

2

the intent was, even though we knew the gentlemen

3

estates in agricultural land when we were trying to

4

protect the agricultural land, the State level, and

5

at the County level, we very deliberately wanted to

6

make sure that those who wanted to farm could farm.

7

And whether this particular subdivision with its

8

CC&Rs takes that away and for all intents and

9

purposes disallows commercial agriculture as part of

10

its basis, you know, does that or does that not

11

follow within the laws that we were to try and

12

enforce?

13

And prior to our passing of the Agricultural

14

Bill we were following the State law, so in my

15

opinion the State law and the implications of the

16

State law to protect those agricultural lands, the

17

very emphasis would not preempt this particular

18

subdivision from having to follow some of those

19

rules.

20

And, again, I apologize for not being part of

21

this discussion, but those were my concerns on this

22

particular area. Whether or not the Planning

23

Department actually has the ability to allow someone

24

whose prohibit agriculture in -- excuse me,

25

agricultural practices in Agricultural-zoned
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property.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Would you like a response from M r
Min on that, Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I would actually like to hear what
they have to say.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Min.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And how they could allow this?
MR. MIN: Sorry, Mr. Arakawa, I didn't catch all of your

9
10

question.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Basically in agricultural

11

properties, land zoned Agriculture, we were trying

12

to encourage -- the State policy was to encourage

13

active agriculture. And the policy had been that

14

you would allow active agriculture and if any

15

gentlemen estates were to come up within

16

Agricultural District, they had to tolerate

17

agricultural activities. How then would a -- would

18

a project be allowed to go through to create CC&Rs

19

in an agriculturally zoned property that would

20

disallow agricultural activities or prohibit some of

21

the agricultural activities, which is specifically,

22

you know, we specifically state in our Ag. Bill that

23

it's -- should be tolerated, must be tolerated.

24

MR. MIN: Okay. All right. I would just like to first of

25

all refer the Committee to a provision in the
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Agricultural Zoning Ordinance. This would be

2

Chapter 19.30A.040, subsection D. And it says no

3

deed, lease -- lease, agreement of sale, mortgage or

4

other instrument of conveyance shall contain any

5

covenant or clause which restricts directly or

6

indirectly the operation of agricultural activities

7

on lands within the Agricultural District. Okay.

8

It goes on to say, this subsection shall not apply

9

to any covenant or clause existing prior to the

10

effective date of this ordinance. But there is that

11

provision. Again, these -- you know, our

12

interpretation is that whatever is provided for

13

under Chapter 205, the State Land Use Law, is

14

permitted within any land that's classified in the

15

State Agricultural District, covenants or no

16

covenants. Okay. We are not a party to those

17

covenants.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. And my question is: The

19

CC&Rs for this particular project, I don't believe,

20

and I could be wrong and I'll stand corrected if

21

not, were not created till after the Ag. Bill was

22

passed, the CC&Rs, and those requirements within the

23

Ag. Bill which prohibit those types of exclusions

24

should also

25

CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Min.

should be honored because of that.
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MR. MIN: Yeah, I -- you know, I'm not sure when the

2

restrictive covenants were -- were done, so I really

3

can't respond to, that specifically.

4

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa, I think that's --

5

MR. MIN: I haven't seen them, either.

6

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa, I think that's a good

7

question to bring up when this item does come to

8

your Committee.

9

At this point the Chair would like to call

10

for a five-minute recess and upon which I will give

11

my final recommendations. Recess for five minutes.

12

(Gavel.)

13

RECESS: 10:40 a.m.

14

RECONVENE: 10:49 a.m.

15

CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works and Transportation Committee

16

meeting for December 5th is now back in session.

17

Thank you very much for your indulgence, Members.

18

We had a long and healthy discussion on this

19

particular item, Item 60, regarding the Maunaolu

20

Estates. Before I give my recommendation, I have

21

one question for the Planning Director. My question

22

relates to I am a Makawao resident and I got a lot

23

of -- several questions asked of me or concerns

24

regarding the project itself. Now, this is

25

supposedly a gated community project and many of us

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

75

PWT 12/5/01

1

in Up-Country are not too familiar with gated

2

communities and it would be something new for the

3

Up-Country area. My question is to Mr. Min. This

4

particular project, was there a requirement to have

5

this project or a presentation done on this project

6
7
8
9

for the public? Was there a requirement to that, or .
is that up to the developer?
MR. MIN: Well, I don't believe there's any specific
requirement for public review in this case. It is a

10

subdivision application which is processed by the

11

Land Use and Codes Division of the Public Works

12

Department. And it's a -- it's an agency approval

13

and there is no public hearing requirement.

14

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. I know one of the

15

testifiers did mention that. For me, personally, I

16

think it's important that all developers at least

17

take into consideration doing an informational

18

meeting for the public, especially for something

19

like this which would be relatively new, a new

20

entity in the Up-Country area, especially that of

21

Makawao.

22

With that said, any other comments or

23

questions from the members at this point? Ms.

24

Tavares, to be followed by Mr. Kane.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Just a point on -- in
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1

19.305.030 under D, in the limits on -- on

2

subdivisions, or re subdivisions, and it (end of

3

tape 1, side B.) agricultural areas. So it says no

4

deed, lease, agreement of sale, mortgage or other

5

instrument of conveyance shall contain any covenant

6

or clause which restricts directly or indirectly the

7

operation of agricultural activities on lands within

8

the Agricultural District. So it is in our laws

9

about a reference to CC&Rs and this subsection -- it

10

says the subsection shall not apply to any covenant

11

that was existing prior to the effective date of the

12

ordinance codified in the Chapter, but I think this

13

CC&R is recent, so maybe that could be checked into

14

it.

15

And another question, I don't know if the

16

answer is available here or -- or else elsewhere is,

17

is the Right to Farm Act still in effect, the US --

18

the Federal law? And I think that the -- you know,

19

we need to look at that, too, as far as what are

20

those implications for us as we look at agricultural

21

uses or uses in agricultural areas.

22

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. W '11 take that question

23

into consideration and try to get a response for

24

you, Ms. Tavares.

25

Mr. Kane.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, I'll leave -- I'll reserve my
comments until after you make your recommendation
3
4
5
6

for this subject matter.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other comments or
questions? Okay. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Chairman Molina, I really

7

appreciate you taking the time to at least address

8

the questions and concerns of the community and at

9

least find if what we're doing is in compliance with

10

the law and if this, in fact, is a legal subdivision

11

that's being done. And I appreciate you at least

12

investigating whether or not those breaks and gaps

13

in the time frame would invalidate anything that,

14

you know, is continuing on with regard to this

15

subdivision.

16

One of the things that -- and this is in

17

19.30A.030, one of the things that has been

18

continuously read, you know, is the reference to the

19

Ag. Bill where it says subsection shall not apply to

20

any lot which received preliminary subdivision, et

21

cetera, et cetera, but then the final sentence which

22

seems to be left out, it says the subsequent lots

23

resulting from such subdivision shall be subject to

24

this subsection. So I just want to make certain

25

that everyone understands that even though the Ag.
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1

Bill, you know, has been enacted, that any lots

2

resulting from these subdivisions shall be subject

3

to the subsection. So anything beyond what was done

4

if this even were grandfathered is subject to
this particular section of the law.
And I really appreciate you taking the time

6
7

to do this and I would appreciate it if it could

8

stay in this particular Committee because of a lot

9

of the questions that are left unanswered. Thank

10
11

you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

12

Members, any other comments or questions?

13

If not, the Chair's recommendation taking

14

into consideration the 11th hour letter that we

15

received from the Water Department regarding the

16

well that is tied into this project, also concerns

17

regarding the subdivision process, I feel it in the

18

best interests of the public and the Committee that

19

this item be deferred. Initially I had planned on

20

filing the communication, but I believe it -- for

21

my, I guess, own and some of the other members of

22

the community who feel that this might be well kept

23

in the Committee where we can monitor this, I would

24

like to keep it in Committee, defer the item and

25

wait until we get some of our questions answered
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1

from the various Department heads and especially

2

with that of the water.

3
4

5
6
7
8
9

So at this point my recommendation is to
defer. Are any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Members.
ACTION: DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, are you considering

10

writing a formal transmittal to Mr. Goode stating

11

the Committee's position?

12
13
14

CHAIR MOLINA: The Chair could take that into
consideration at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would like that -- because I

15

would like that as part of the official public

16

record that we are sending a transmittal

17

communication stating the Committee's intent and

18

therefore I would consider that the Director clearly

19

understands the intent of this Committee and that

20

processing further the application would not be in

21

the spirit of what we're trying to accomplish.

22

CHAIR MOLINA: So noted, Mr. Hokama. I think we brought

23

up a lot of interesting issues with regards to this

24

subdivision and, again, I -- as Member Tavares

25

stated earlier, we hope this is not interpreted by
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1

Mr. Smith as that we're just picking on him. It

2

just happened to be a project that happens to

3

don't want to say at the wrong place at the wrong

4

time or anything of that nature, but there are many

5

questions with regards to the process and coinciding

6

with the Ag. Zoning law. I think it just got sort

7

of caught in the middle of things. So, therefore,

I

my recommendation to defer and see if we can get our
9
10

questions answered in a timely manner.
ITEM NO. 32: RE: OUTDOOR LIGHTING (C.C. 00-125)

11

CHAIR MOLINA: So with that, Members, I would like to

12

proceed to our next item, which is Item N . 32,

13

which relates to outdoor lighting. The Committee is

14

in receipt of a memorandum dated November 30th, 2001

15

from the Committee Chair regarding the establishment

16

f a subcommittee on outdoor lighting. Please note

17

that I am recommending that the subcommittee be

18

established as of January 2nd, 2002 for a term of 90

19

days ending on April 2nd, 2002.

20
21

Now, you should all have a list of the
members who have been recommended --

22

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Very last one.

23

CHAIR MOLINA: -- for this Committee.

24

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, sir, Mr. Kane.
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1

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Just for information's sake, the memo to

2

the members of the Council from you, the Chair of

3

Public Works and Transportation Committee, dated

4

5

November 30th, which is I think in mine, anyway, the
last document is the memo that kind of breaks down
what your intentions are.

7
8
9
10

CHAIR MOLINA: Right. With the objections. Thank you,
Mr. Kane -VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: -- for that clarification. It should be at

11

the back of your binders or at the end of the

12

subject area.

13

We had a long and healthy discussion on this

14

matter and these were the names that were

15

recommended for this Committee after some discussion

16

that I had with my analyst and also members of the

17

community. Would you like a few minutes to go over

18

the names? A brief recess, Members, or can we

19

continue to proceed?

20

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Chair, what's your recommendation?

21

CHAIR MOLINA: At this point I would ask for a motion to

22

recommend the approval of all the members of this

23

Committee or this subcommittee.

24

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Second.
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1

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Carroll,

2

seconded by Mr. Arakawa. Members, discussion? Mr.

3

Hokama.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, besides you and Ms.

5

Tavares, which I would assume has agreed already and

6

will show up at those meetings, have the other

7

members that you are recommending to us this

8

morning, sir, been notified and have acknowledged

9

their willingness to serve as well as put in the

10

time to attend those meetings?

11

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, they have.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.

13

CHAIR MOLINA: And I emphasized to them we really need

14

their attendance badly, because otherwise it defeats

15

the purpose of having the subcommittee. And they

16

have expressed a deep interest in addresSing the

17

outdoor lighting, the proposed outdoor lighting

18

bill.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, the attendance of Mr.
Lee -- I believe it's a he, Lee Altenberg --

21

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, sir.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

from the University of Hawaii,

23

Manoa, we are incurring his expenses, sir, for these

24

meetings?

25

CHAIR MOLINA: No, not to my knowledge. And I. believe Mr.
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1

Altenberg is in the audience, if you would like to

2

have his comments on this, Mr. Hokama, or --

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just was wondering. And this is

4

nothing to do with Dr. Altenberg, but we don't have

5

people qualified MCC or -- you know, I would -- you
know, I can appreciate his expertise, but I think

7

people who live here and get impacted by things we

8

do here I can -- I would consider them as a higher

9

priority to sit on committees.

10

CHAIR MOLINA: I believe Mr. Altenberg lives most of the

11

time here on Maui. So, Mr. Hokama, would you care

12

to hear from Mr. Altenberg about his availability?

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No objections, Mr. Chair.

14

CHAIR MOLINA: We can do that. Okay. Mr. Altenberg, if

15

you can come up to the podium and state your name

16

for the record.

17

MR. ALTENBERG: Yes. I'm Lee Altenberg. And regarding my

18

availability, through the miracle of the internet I

19

teach at UH Manoa while living in Kihei.

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you -- well, I won't make a

21

comment. I always thought you should be in front of

22

your students physically.

23

MR. ALTENBERG: I agree. I welcome them to come to Maui.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you -- obviously, then, doctor,

25

you have no problems with the requirements of the
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1

subcommittee?

2

MR. ALTENBERG: No.

3
4
5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much. I appreciate
it.
MR. ALTENBERG: Thank you.

6

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: We can do that and stay on Lanai.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Arakawa.

9

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The only slight concern I have

10

is -- and this can be rectified by using people from

11

the Police Department as reference or Fire

12

Department as reference, but they're not -- you

13

don't have anybody from those areas on the committee

14

itself.

15
16
17

CHAIR MOLINA: Well, we plan on using them as resource,
resource people.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Because as we have heard at

18

the last meeting on this topic, they had some

19

serious concerns.

20

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The Committee is well composed,

22

but it's very weighted in one area versus not having

23

members in a lot of the other areas of the

24

community. So there are many different types of

25

lighting that are going to have to be discussed and
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1

for many different uses, that's my only concern.

2

But, again, you can use people in those other areas

3

as references, but please be sure to include those

4

opinions.

5

CHAIR MOLINA: We'll most definitely do so. And I believe

6

we did ask for someone from the Police Department,

7

but I think the availability of them coming to these

8

subcommittee meetings, they're very limited on

9

(inaudible).

10

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, one of the other areas,

11

seniors, I had discussions with some of the seniors

12

that, you know, on lighting they have a lot of

13

problems if you don't have the high intensity

14

lights, their visibility --

15

CHAIR MOLINA: Drive at night.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- to see to drive, there are

17

concerns. So those concerns also need to be taken

18

into consideration when we're discussing lighting

19

and the ability to see and see colors especially.

20

That's a concern.

21

CHAIR MOLINA: I think that you bring up a good point.

22

The staff can consider finding a resource person

23

from the senior citizens sector of the community

24

as -- to give input on this issue. We would

25

definitely like to include them as well.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 12/5/01

86

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. You might also want to get
2

some drivers, professional drivers, such as for the

3

tour company or with major transpottation where

4

they're doing a lot of driving and see different

5

areas in the community as they go through it, what

6

those concerns may be.

7

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.

8

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And as long as I'm not on the

9
10
11
12

subcommittee, it's great.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Members, any other comments?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for your indulgence,

13

Chairman. At this time can you inform us who your

14

resource people are and if it is not to your

15

advantage, sir, as the subcommittee chairman, to

16

have those members maybe considered as nonvoting

17

committee members whereby, you know, sometimes it

18

helps motivate the attendance because they are part

19

of the official committee makeup, sir.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Ex officios.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But they will not have voting

22
23
24
25

privileges.
CHAIR MOLINA: Somewhat of maybe like an ex officio
status.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's correct.
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1

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Well, I do know we have police,

2

we've had as resource personnel also members of the

3

hotel association, DLNR

4

no, we don't have DL

5
6

I'm sorry, we do have -DLNR is a resource person.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is Mr. Arakawa part of your -- Mr.
Milton Arakawa --

7

CHAIR MOLINA: Public Works, yes.

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes. Yes.

9

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, I believe we have Public Works as a

10
11
12

resource.
Anyone else? Jan, do you have that listing?
MS. OGATA: Public Works as well as Land. Use and Codes,

13

and Prosecutors, the Energy Division Coordinator, as

14

was mentioned, a representative from the Maui Police

15

Department, possibly a representative from the

16

development sector, and the Recreational Division of

17

maybe the County of Maui.

18

CHAIR MOLINA: Parks and Recs.

19

MS. OGATA: Yeah. And also possibly the Budget Director.

20

Those were just a few that were mentioned.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, may I -- I would just

22

suggest as a recommendation for your consideration

23

that you may want to ask someone from State

24

Airports, maybe Maui District, as far as how

25

lighting may or may not impact our aviation
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I

concerns.

2

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Especially whether it be for the

4

identification of some highways, building, or a

5

tower that needs appropriate lighting intensity to

6

be seen from a safe distance prior to the approach

7

of an aircraft or other transportation needs,

8

concerns.

9
10
11
12
13

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Good point, Mr. Hokama. We will
take that into consideration, the Airports Division.
Any other suggestions? Ms. Tavares, to be
followed by Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Perhaps someone from the

14

Safe Communities Organization, Calvin Dang or a

15

representative would be, I think, valuable as far as

16

the safety aspect of lighting.

17
18
19

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: And just a final request, Mr. Chair, for

20

your consideration is at full Council that the list

21

of names that we're talking about now can be

22

provided as an attachment to this communication.

23

CHAIR MOLINA: So noted.

24

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
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1
2

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: One more suggestion: A

3

representative from Maui Electric. They service

4

most of the lights.

5

6

CHAIR MOLINA: That's right. I do, I believe, have them
as resource.

7

MS. OGATA: Yeah.

8

CHAIR MOLINA: I believe that was Mr. --

9

MS. OGATA: Yeah. I didn't say that one.

10

CHAIR MOLINA: Randall -- I've got his name. We do have

11

the name of the -- Randall Nakama is the

12

representative from Maui Electric.

13
14

Okay. Comments? Questions? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just had a -- you may have

15

somebody on your committee already or at least a

16

consultant, and that would be somebody from the

17

construction trades industry who would be doing

18

installations or doing eithet residential or

19

commercial lighting where they actually have

20

hands-on experience.

21

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman.

23

CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hokama.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. Again, just so that we

25

as your Committee members are clear on procedure,
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1

sir, to establish this, my understanding, Chairman,

2

is that just the Committee needs to approve it,

3

because this committee only responds and reports to

4

this standing committee and you as its Chairman.

5

6

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The findings of the subcommittee

7

upon the conclusion of its work after the review of

8

this Standing Committee would then transmit it to

9

full Council. So at this time, because I heard -- I

10

heard Mr. Kane's request --

11

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Yeah. I'm sorry.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- that Council does not get

13

involved in this subcommittee until after the work

14

is done and a report or findings of conclusion is

15

presented to this Committee and then reported out to

16

Council. So I just wanted to ask if that is a

17

correct understanding of what's happening to this,

18

sir?

19

CHAIR MOLINA: I believe so, but to be honest with you,

20

I'm really not sure. Maybe I could get an opinion

21

from the Corporation Counsel or Legal Analyst --

22

Legislative Analyst. Jan.

23

MS. OGATA: Mr. Chair, that is also my understanding.

24

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
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2
3

CHAIR MOLINA: I get confirmation on that.
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Since I had a subcommittee

4

in the Planning Committee, what Mr. Hokama is saying

5

is correct. Because I think we were going to do the

6

same thing, was send it to full Council, and at that

7

time it was, you know, discovered or told to us

8

that, yes, it's just reporting to this Committee.

9

So nothing from this formation will go to the full

10

Council.

11

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. All right. Mr. Kane.

12

VICE-CHAIR KANE: And my apologies. Mr. Hokama and Ms.

13

Tavares both had the opportunities to chair

14

subcommittees, and so their familiarity -- I will

15

yield to that, that expertise. So at some point all

16

I'm suggesting -- I think the spirit of it is that

17

we have a list of those names somewhere, somehow, so

18

we know who the resource people are in addition to

19

what has been provided to us on this memo.

20

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.

21

VICE-CHAIR KANE: That's basically what I'm looking for.

22

CHAIR MOLINA: I think with the prior subcommittees of Mr.

23

Hokama, Ms. Tavares, we can use -- hopefully some of

24

those names can be attached to the recommendations

25

that have been made by you all today.
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Okay. Any other discussion or questions?

1
2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Call for the question.

3

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. The question has been called. The

4
5

6
7

motion on the floor is to approve the members on
this subcommittee. All those in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you very much.

8

The motion is passed unanimously and the Chair will

9

take into consideration the suggestions made by the

10

members as to who else to include as far as resource

11

personnel for this particular item.

12

VOTE: AYES:

13
14
15
16
17
18
19

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Councilmember Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama,
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane and Chair
Molina.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
APPROVAL of the establishment of the
membership, objective, duration for the
Subcommittee on Outdoor Lighting
Standards.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.

20

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, ma'am.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The last time that we had this

22

item discussed in Committee, I think there was a

23

suggestion made that the proposed ordinance be put

24

into the format of our ordinance, of our -- our

25

County Code format rather than --
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1

CHAIR MOLINA: What's been issued to us.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- what's been issued here. So I

3

think that would be a whole -- more helpful to us so

4

that as we're -- we don't get something lost in

5

translation if we work off this one and then it has

6

to be, you know, codified to our formula later on.

7

So maybe we should work from that form. And

8

hopefully Corp. Counsel is working on that

9

assignment or will receive information about it that

10
11

they can do that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So noted.
Okay. Any other comments or concerns

12
13

regarding Item 32? Hearing none, thank you very

14

much, Members.

15
16
17

ITEM NO. 38: RE: GRANT OF LICENSE TO PACIFIC WAREHOUSE,
INC. (C.C. 01-312)

CHAIR MOLINA: Our last item on the agenda for today is

18

Item 38, which relates to a proposed resolution

19

authorizing a grant of a license to Pacific

20

Warehouse, Inc. for a wall encroachment on to the

21

County of Maui's right-of-way along Keala Place in

22

Kihei.

23

The Chair will yield the microphone to the

24

Deputy Director of Public Works and Waste

25

Management, Mr. Arakawa, to give us an overview of
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1

this matter.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair. Excuse me. Did you

3

want to defer Item 32 first, before you went into

4

38?

5

VICE-CHAIR KANE: We need to defer.
MS. OGATA: Oh, okay.

7

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I'm sorry. We had a motion and item
number deferred. My apologies. I'm sorry. Getting

9

caught up in the motions here.
So for the record, Item 32 is deferred.

10
11

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

12

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. It's been a long morning.

13

Excuse me.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I want to go to lunch.

15

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I can see those hungry looks in your

16
17

eyes.
As stated earlier, we have the Deputy

18

Director of Public Works, Mr. Arakawa, to give us an

19

overview of Item No. 38. Proceed, Mr. Arakawa.

20

MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The license

21

agreement that's before you is for a hollow tile

22

wall which encroaches on to Keala Place. This is on

23

the Foodland property. And the encroachment is

24

approximately 6 inches by 70 feet, so it's about 35

25

square feet in area that we're talking about. You
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have before you the draft of the license agreement.

2

As far as the Department is concerned, we have no

3

objections to the execution of the license

4

agreement.

5
6

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Comments or questions from the
members for Mr. Arakawa?

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Question.

8

CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Tavares.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Arakawa, do you know why this

10

happened that they are even in the County's

11

right-of-way?

12

MR. ARAKAWA: No, I do not. I do not. But the six-inch

13

encroachment is relatively minor encroachment, we

14

feel, and we also included some provision in there

15

that should we need that area for any public purpose

16

in the future, that the license agreement will be

17

revoked if, in fact, we do need it at some point in

18

the future.

19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is this an old wall? Keala Place
is the -- it intersects with South Kihei Road?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, it does. As far as the age of the

22

wall, I'm sorry, I'm not certain when that wall was

23

erected.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. Thank you. I just
think that, you know, when it comes to encroachments
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1

and things, if it has to me bearing, I would rather

2

see us, you know, grant licenses but with fees,

3

especially for recently developed or built things.

4

Because I think sometimes, you know, this

5

encroachment stuff gets a little out of hand and if

6

we start putting some, you know, you rent -- you
lease the property from the County of Maui for your
wall or for whatever the encroachment is. I

9

understand that some of the older things -- because

10

the technology of surveying wasn't as wonderful and

11

accurate as the technology we have today, I can

12

understand some of those older things, but

13

especially things built new when there is

14

encroachment, either an inspector is not inspecting

15

properly or whoever is surveying is not checking

16

well enough, but there should be some consequence

17

other than, oh, yeah, we'll just get a license

18

afterwards rather than move the wall. So maybe it's

19

something that we can look into as an administration

20

to start leasing for a fee or licensing for a fee

21

the use of County property. Because in some cases

22

we have used taxpayers' dollars to acquire some of

23

those properties, so we should, you know, getting a

24

return for that. I know in other cases they're part

25

of dedications that are required by subdivision and
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all that, but it's still, you know, the property of

2

the people of the County of Maui.

3

CHAIR MOLINA: I don't think that's an unreasonable

4

suggestion, Ms. Tavares. I think it's a very good

5

one, as a matter of fact.

6

Mr. Hokama.

7
8
9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Arakawa, this wall, just to follow up
from what Ms. Tavares has started for me, this wall,

10

how high is this wall? Because I know by our code

11

if it's over a certain height, it needed a building

12

permit. And if the County did approve the building

13

permit, then it puts an additional spin on this

14

request because the County had given approval for

15

the construction of a wall and nothing to do with

16

the developer or the requester being -- well, he

17

would be like a legal nonconforming structure

18

because he did come in for a permit and got

19

approval. And so, again, you know, I mean, I can

20

understand Ms. Tavares's suggestion to have a fee,

21

and yet, though, if we have approved --

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- the permit, that's another thing

24

all together. Would you know if it received

25

approval from the County prior to construction?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Hokama, I'm sorry, I don't

2

know the details of the wall and whether or not

3

there was a permit that was issued. I think

4

Councilmember Tavares raises a good point. We will

5

look into possibly asking for some compensation for

6

future encroachments that come before our

7

Department, but you are also correct if we have --

8

our Department has issued that permit for that wall,

9

then that adds another factor that we need to take

10

into consideration, too.

11

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, if I may.

12

CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One more. Are you aware of the

14

proximity of the closest building to this wall? And

15

the only reason I bring it up is that if everything

16

is based on this wall at what that person or that

17

entity thought was the boundary and then they used

18

the minimum setback for construction of a structure,

19

another structure, office building or what have you

20

in that area, then more than likely that building

21

would not make the minimum standards of setback,

22

either. And that brings up another problem then.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And so not to be picky about it,

25

you know, but the law is the law. And if Public
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1

Works would check on it for us, please, and respond

2

to you, Chairman, as head of this Committee, I would

3

appreciate that. Thank you.

4

CHAIR MOLINA: So noted, Mr. Hokama.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.

7
8
9
10
11
12

CHAIR MOLINA: I'm sorry. We had Mr. Arakawa and followed
by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Arakawa. I'm sorry, Alan
Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, do we have the

13

representative of the owner present that can answer

14

some of these questions?

15

CHAIR MOLINA: No, we don't.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Because. Milton is being asked to

17

answer the questions and, really, the owner should

18

be answering some of these questions.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Nobody is here.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If we have someone available.

21

CHAIR MOLINA: Nope. We did not --

22

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just as an aside, on this

23

particular project, depending on the size of the

24

wall, depending on the cost that's going to be

25

incurred, now, it's conceivable that if the cost is
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1

not substantial, maybe we should just require them

2

to move it back to where it is. And South Kihei

3

Road, you know, that's relatively -- an area we've

4

been actually condemning properties to try and get

5

the proper width to be able to do things. And,

6

again,

7

pictures of this project and we're not -- you know,

8

we're not privy to a lot of the information that --

9

on the site, I'm not sure how or what the actual

not sure because we don't have any

10

effect is going to be as far as cost. I know that

11

when I was working construction, there were many

12

times we constructed walls, we had to take them down

13

and move them if something was wrong. And in this

14

particular case if it's not going to be so onerous

15

that it can't be done, you know, if it's three, four

16

feet high, who cares, the cost might be very

17

minimal. If it's a load-bearing, then the cost

18

might be excessive. I would like to know that

19

before giving it an approval. And also the reason I

20

would like to know this is because in this area we

21

have been cramped for spaces and we have actually

22

been condemning properties and trying to create

23

properties.

24
25

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So noted, Mr. Arakawa.
We have Ms. Tavares, to be followed by Mr.
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2
3
4

5
6

Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I just want to know, is any
fee incurred for them to pursue this license?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Tavares, no, I don't believe
so.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You know, when it goes the other

7

way around -- not the other way around, but in other

8

instances, I know that if a person, you know, bought

9

this house -- I know of one case, person bought the

10

house, they changed the road, then it turned out

11

that a corner of the garage was not in the

12

minimum -- was in the minimum setback and so what

13

that person had to do was file for a variance, you

14

know, on the -- whatever, and that cost that person

15

whatever the cost is to file for a variance.

16

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Right.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And yet in a situation like this

18

we're giving -- you know, this license agreement is

19

basically free. You know, in a way I'm sorry I

20

opened this can of worms here, but it's such an

21

intriguing subject. But, you know, things like

22

that, I mean, it's almost as if -- Now, if the

23

County of Maui was at fault for where this wall is,

24

then I say, fine, you know, we just eat it. But if

25

it was actually the developer or the construction,
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1

whoever constructed the wall or whoever did the

2

survey for the company -- for the landowner, if they

3

were at fault because they were in error, then I

4

think they should have to take responsibility for

5

that error. So, you know, perhaps we need a little

6

more investigation on some of these things where it

7

comes to encroachment, encroachment problems, but --

8

you know, we want to say we want to be fair in the

9

County, we make other people pay for getting

10

variances, you know, no matter what the

11

circumstances were of why they're in an, you know,

12

illegal setback or encroachment. So, you know, I

13

think more detail about this particular instance

14

might be -- might be helpful to us in perhaps

15

formulating some other maybe policies for the County

16

of Maui when it comes to encroachment on County.

17

properties.

18
19

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
Mr. Carroll.

20

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Along the same

21

line, I know that if you build a house too close to

22

the property line or build a wall on somebody else's

23

place, you are responsible, period, because I know

24

of cases that I can bring up that we have come

25

across. And Corporation Counsel, I'm sure, can
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confirm this, that it is the owner's responsibility

2

when building any structure to make sure that it is

3

on his property, not the County inspector, period.

4

So there is no fault at the County. The County

5

cannot be faulted if the inspector did not see it.

6

Now, this is -- I know of cases where this has gone

7

to court and this was the decision. And I'm sure

8

Corporation Counsel -- I am very confident of what

9

I'm saying and they could confirm this. It is the

10

responsibility of the owner, period. And in that

11

light, the owner should be either removing the wall

12

or compensating the County for the use of that area

13

until at such time the County might need it. And

14

that is the only thing that I would approve. But

15

the County cannot be at fault on this. The County

16

is not responsible for them building a wall. We did

17

not build that wall. We did not survey that land.

18

They survey the land and put the pin over there and

19

they build a wall, the inspector comes, he is not

20

going to resurvey that property.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.

22

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: It's up to the then owner to make

23

sure the property is properly surveyed and the

24

structure, wall, building, whatever was built in

25

- accordance to the laws and ordinances according to
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their survey. If it's not, it is not the County's

2

responsibility. And in that light, maybe we do need

3

4
5

to look at this more.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
Members? Mr. Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I guess another point that could be

7

brought forward was just a reference back to Ms.

8

Tavares's point of modern technology and surveying

9

capabilities. So when was this wall built and what

10

kind of technology was present at the time? Now,

11

we're talking about a wall that's six inches

12

encroachment by a length, but six inches, you know,

13

perhaps there is a deferral necessary for this

14

particular one. You know, I don't know and I --

15

I'll yield to your recommendation, Mr. Chair. But I

16

think that the -- what Mr. Arakawa, our deputy,

17

pointed out was I think in Section 12 of the

18

agreement, the termination clause, that if there are

19

any issues where the County needs to go in and for

20

whatever reason deal with the road and expanding it

21

or doing whatever they have to do, I think the

22

language is very clear that the licenser hereby

23

reserves the right to terminate this license at will

24

by notice from the Director and in sole discretion

25

with or without cause, you know. So, yes, issues
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were brought forward and I just wanted to make those

2

comments.

3

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Very good.

4

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Interesting to listen because it seems

5

like we're kind of going farther and farther out and
we need to come back to --

7
8
9

CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: -- this agreement that's before us on a
six-inch wall. And I think there's important issues

10

that are brought forward and perhaps we do need to,

11

again, defer to answer some of these questions, but

12

I think the -- by reading the agreement, the County

13

is protected in this particular case. Thank you.

14
15
16
17

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. I think we'll have something
very valid here at least for the County.
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. And this will

18

decide how I respond to your recommendation that we

19

will hear shortly.

20

Mr. Corporation Counsel, one of the things

21

that this license does is acknowledge the County's

22

property, that corresponds to County's property as

23

well as relieving the County of liability

24

responsibilities. So maybe one recommendation that

25

the Chairman may make is ask us to move this forward
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1

and that prior to, I guess, Council's final

2

approval, information that has been requested by

3

this Committee can be submitted and that an approval

4

by Council or a recommittal of the recommendation

5

back to Committee for filing may be the more
appropriate action. But if this Committee chooses

7

not to move forward and defer, are we then
acknowledging that for this point in time we will
accept the liability of the wall and any liability

10
11

that may arise against the County?
MR. GARNEAU: Right. The -- it remains County property.

12

So this particular agreement has the indemnification

13

provision.

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If it doesn't move forward.

15

MR. GARNEAU: Yeah. So by executing this agreement, the

16

owner, the Pacific Warehouse, is indemnifying the

17

County. So if, for example, someone was sitting on

18

the wall and was injured after this was executed,

19

then they would be responsible for defending the

20

suit. But as of right now, without this agreement,

21

then it's still County property, so if someone were

22

to be -- something was to happen in the interim, we

23

would be responsible, it's our property.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. That

25

makes a lot of difference to me. Thank you.
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1

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Arakawa.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA Mr. Chairman, in the inspection of

3

this property and of this site, Milton, is there a

4

site plan that's available for us to look at right

5

now or can you get it to us from your Department in

6

the next five or ten minutes so we can actually see

7

what's there and when it was built and some of these

8

other things? Because, you know, in reality, six

9

inches isn't a whole heck of a lot to be concerned

,

10

about, but the principle of what we're talking about

11

I think really needs to be discussed. If someone

12

can be allowed to be -- to build something on a

13

County property and our building inspectors go out

14

there and they approve this, this construction, they

15

don't catch these kinds of errors and we're liable

16

for it until such time as it is corrected, I've got

17

a real problem with that. Because if -- if anybody

18

goes out and does something , even if we don't catch

19

it, on some County property, that implication would

20

mean that we're liable for it even though we're not

21

responsible for having that illegal thing done.

22

And, again, I would like to see the ramifications of

23

it from a legal aspect. Because I would think that

24

as long as this is there, it's been assumed as part

25

of the construction of it they would be responsible

-
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1

for having -- the owner would be responsible for

2

having constructed the project and during this

3

process of resolution of this, they should be

4

responsible rather than the County. If the County

5

is responsible from the inception of the project and

6

the owner is absolved of that responsibility from

7

the time it's done until it goes through a process,

8

perhaps we need to look at creating a law that

9

exempts us from that liability and creates the

10

liability of the owner until time as it can be

11

corrected or legislatively corrected. And, again, I

12

have a concern primarily because of that liability.

13

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Go ahead. Mr. Garneau.

14

MR. GARNEAU: Yeah. May I respond? Mr. Arakawa, the fact

15

that it's County property would make us liable, but

16

that would not relieve the person who built the wall

17

from liability as well. I mean, I think we would

18

both be on. The difference is is that once this

19

license is signed, it includes an indemnification

20

provision.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I don't want you to go beyond what

22

you just said because I want to understand this

23

clearly.

24

MR. GARNEAU: Okay.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The owner built the wall.
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2

MR. GARNEAU: That's

109

right.

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If somebody were to go along right

3

now and for whatever reason stub his toe, break his

4

neck, you know, some kid sitting on the wall fell

5

off of it or whatever, got hurt, and this went to
court, who would get sued?

7

MR. GARNEAU: I think that a prudent attorney would sue

8

both the person that built the wall and the County

9

for the -- as the owner of the property.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. So we as taxpayers, the

11

taxpayer has a responsibility, could end up paying

12

at least a portion of the liability as it sits now?

13

MR. GARNEAU: Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And, again, that's what I think --

15

if that is the case, then perhaps we need to review

16

some of our laws and try and build in some kind of

17

an indemnity whereby if something is constructed

18

without the County willfully participating in it and

19

knowingly participating in it, at least that

20

liability refers back to the constructor of the

21

(inaudible).

22

MR. GARNEAU: And, Mr. Arakawa, there may be in our

23

permitting process -- I don't know whether we

24

require as -- when someone is issued a permit,

25

whether we also have an indemnification provision
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be other recourse other than

1

there. So there may

2

this license that we could rely on if we were to be

3

brought into a lawsuit. So I don't know whether

4

there's anyone here that can answer that question,

5

but, you know, there may be as part of our

6

permitting process that we ask for indemnification

7

as well. But this certainly -- this license

8

agreement, because it particularly for this wall

9

does say indemnification, it is --

10

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, I can understand if we grant

11

it, we get absolved from it, but the principle

12

behind it -- If there is an indemnification within

13

the Department in their permitting process, that

14

would be fine, it would resolve our liability for

15

something being done improperly. But I don't like

16

the fact that the County is being exposed and the

17

taxpayer dollars are being exposed for something

18

that is of no fault or no consequence of the

19

taxpayers' reaction. So we need to be -- have some

20

kind of protection. If it's built in, again, into

21

the agreement, then that's fine, but this is

22

universal for everyone. We need -- in the

23

permitting process or in our laws, we need to be

24

able to establish clearly that we are not

25

responsible for the encroachment. And if you could
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look into that, find out from the Department whether

2

or not there is such a provision within the

3

permitting process, then at least that will relieve

4

my anxiety as to our exposure. Because some of

5

these lawsuits, you know, they seem trivial, but we

6

may end up spending millions of dollars for nothing.

7

And, I mean, you know, we just went through and we

8

listened to things from Corp. Counsel that come down

9

where we get sued for literally millions of dollars

10

and it's through no fault of the County, but the

11

taxpayers within the County are liable for it. In

12

situations like this, if we're becoming liable for

13

it, then either our inspectors need to get on the

14

ball and make sure that these things don't happen,

15

or we may need to change our setback requirements so

16

that walls of this nature are set back at least

17

couple inches so they can't encroach on County

18

property. I mean, we may have to review some of the

19

rules to prevent situations from occurring whereby

20

we jeopardize the County.

21

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.

22

Mr. Carroll, you had a question.

23

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair, I have no problem with this

24

particular one. My comments were just because we

25

were talking about who is liable in what. But I
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1

have no problem with this passing this out and

2

perhaps could leave the subject matter in the

3

Committee and at some other time you could schedule

4

this after more information is gathered from Public

5

Works and our Corporation Counsel. And perhaps we

6

could make some action, take some policy, some

7

revisions for the future, but for this particular

8

one, I'm ready for the Chair's recommendation and I

9

think it would be prudent for us to pass it if for

10

nothing else so when somebody trips on the wall

11

tomorrow, we don't have to worry about it.

12

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.

13

Members, any other questions or comments?

14

Okay. The Chair -- at this time I have

15

concerns, too, about the fees and costs to the

16

County. We did -- I was informed by our analyst

17

that we did contact the owner, Mr. Norman Murakami.

18

I believe he did not respond to our call, if I'm

19

correct. Am I correct with that, Jan?

20

MS. OGATA: Mr. Chair, he is not the owner, but he is

21

of -- from COntrolPoint Surveying, Incorporation and

22

he is the contact person listed on the transmittal

23

letter. He was notified of the meeting. He was

24

sent an agenda. He did call and, you know, he was

25

inquiring as to whether, you know, it was necessary

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

113

PWT 12/5/01

1
2

for him to be here. And I told him, you know, it
was his discretion and I could not respond as to

3

whether issues would be coming up or not, but I said

4

should issues come up, it would be good that he be

5

here. I guess he decided not to -- not to come.

6

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. I guess, too, on the surface it

7

did appear that this would be a rather easy topic,

8

but in light of the other issues brought up, very

9

good ones, I might add, I think from myself I would

10

feel more comfortable with deferring the item. And

11

I would like to have pictures and maybe more

12

specific information about the wall such as its

13

height, when was the wall built, and what technology

14

was used to survey the wall or the area.

15

So if there are no objections, the Chair

16

would like to defer this matter and, bring this up at

17

a future date.

18

Okay. Ms. Tavares, do you have a comment?

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I was hoping you weren't

20
21

going to defer.
CHAIR MOLINA: The other option I could look -- I was

22

considering, also, is recommending the adoption of

23

the resolution and then defer the matter and pending

24

it going to Council level, if we get all these

25

questions answered -- I'm open to that.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I think as somebody stated

2

earlier, that the information that we need could be

3

given to us while it's in transit to the full

4

Council before First Reading. So, you know, rather

5

than hold this up because every day that we hold it

6

up, we're liable right now. So the sooner we can

7

get this going, you know, actually, the better. So,

8

you know, between now and, what, First Reading would

9

be where? December 17th as the earliest. So, you

10

know, we've got like two weeks to get some of the

11

pictures or the plans and give Mr. Arakawa some time

12

to research the permits and when they were given out

13

and stuff like that.

14

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Just so I get a clear understanding,

15

maybe I ask the question to the Corp. Counsel, so if

16

we defer this and somebody does get into some kind

17

of mishap with regards to the wall

18

?: Exposed, liable.

19

CHAIR MOLINA: -- we are exposed. So if we -- if we do

20

pass it out, then we're still covered, pass it out

21

at least up to the Council level.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Until it is accepted.

23

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Then we are indemnified by passing

24
25

it out?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No. I think we're still exposed
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until we pass it at full Council.

2

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Correct.

3

CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Garneau?

4

MR. GARNEAU: The indemnification provision would come

5

into effect when the -- when it's executed, the

6

license is executed, and that's not till after full

7

Council, so --

8

VICE-CHAIR KANE: Approved and signed by the Mayor.

9

MR. GARNEAU: So that's even another reason, perhaps, to

10

send it for First Reading and give us an opportunity

11

to answer the questions and not hold it up again.

12

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Well, then, hearing that coming from

13

our Corporation Counsel, then I'm a little bit more

14

reassured, so I will then change my recommendation.

15

I will go ahead and ask for a motion to adopt the

16

proposed resolution.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So moved.

18

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.

19

CHAIR MOLINA: So it's been moved by Mr. Arakawa, seconded

20

by Mr. Carroll. DiscusSion? Mr. Arakawa.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Prior to -- and I say prior to it

22

receive -- being scheduled on Council, I would like

23

to get that information so we can look at it so we

24

don't have to have a lengthy discussion on the floor

25

on the topic. But I do think that, Milton, perhaps
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1

you should do an analysis as to whether the cost

2

would be minimal for them to actually make (end of

3

tape 2, side 1) six inches on a mistake is not bad.

4

I think our zoning ordinances allow minor mistakes

5

in how we do the calculation. I think, Corp.

6

Counsel, if you were to explain that as part of the

7

law, those kind of things can just be adjusted by

8

regulation, by legal requirement. So I think we're

9

doing what's already allowable, but it's a good

10

practice to have. And, again, if the -- if the cost

11

is so minimal that it doesn't really make a whole

12

lot of difference, then just correcting it might be

13

the better action, but at this point moving this on

14

is the most -- makes the most sense to me. And it's

15

assignment as we analyze what's actually there, we

16

get to look at it a little bit better. At the very

17

least we're working in a process where we're taking

18

care of this -- the safety of our citizens from

19

getting sued.

20

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.

21

Ms. Tavares.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. And by the condition in

23

the -- in the agreement under Condition 12 under

24

Termination, the County can terminate at will for no

25

cause or cause. So if we should decide later that
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1

we want to charge them, we just can notify the owner

2

that we're going to, you know, redo this agreement

3

and, you know, whatever it is we want to do. So

4

it's not like this is going to be passed and that's

5

the only thing we can do with this particular

6

situation. So we have a -- you know, a way to

7

further negotiate if we -- if we wish to do so.

8
9

CHAIR MOLINA: It gives the County more flexibility, in
other words.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.

11

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

12
13

Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just a question, Chairman. Are we

14

filing this communication? Because that would be my

15

preference. And if you feel to refer the subject of

16

the granting of license to use County rural property

17

be referred back to Committee, I think that gives

18

you enough --

19

CHAIR MOLINA: Leeway.

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: -- leeway within the parameters of

21

the subject to have a greater discussion than just

22

leaving this specific one on Pacific Warehouse and

23

Keala Place. I would consider that to be too

24

narrowed and too specific for us to have a greater

25

discussion, Chairman.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But if that is your direction,

3

then, you know, I will leave

4

consider that, please.

5

CHAIR MOLINA: So noted, Mr. Hokama.

6

Mr. Kane.

7
8

9

I will ask you to

VICE-CHAIR KANE: No -- Mr. Chair, if that's a friendly
amendment -- or if you could restate the motion
that's on the floor that it would include filing of

10

the communication, I would have no objection.

11

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I believe I should have added that

12
13
14
15

portion to my motion. My apologies.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: We accept it as part of the
motion.
CHAIR MOLINA: The motion -- the filing, right. So,

16

again, the motion on the floor is for the adoption

17

of the proposed resolution and the filing of the

18

communication. As stated for the record, it was

19

moved by Mr. Arakawa and seconded by Mr. Carroll.

20
21

Any other discussion? Hearing none, all
those in favor say aye.

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

23

CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you very

24

much, Members.

25
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VOTE: AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Hokama,
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane and Chair
Molina.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.
ADOPTION of resolution and FILING of
communication.

7

CHAIR MOLINA: Any announcements? If not, thank you very

8

much for your professionalism and indulgence. This

9

meeting is adjourned. (Gavel.)

10

ADJOURN: 11:41 a.m.

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808). 524-2090

120

PWT 12/5/01

1
2

CERTIFICATE
STATE OF HAWAII
SS.

3
4
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5
6
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7

Reporter for the State of Hawaii, hereby certify

8

that the proceedings were taken down by me in

9
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10
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11
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12
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13

in the foregoing matter.

14
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15
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16
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